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.. To.Qur Fellow. Shareholders R AT U TR Sy e e D

<,~As all. of you know only too well 2002 was - a- year of global .economic uncertamty, major
..bankruptcies, corporate . scandals.. and Jittery--financia] ;markets;-all -against ;a- backdrop of the
-continuing:war- against terrorism,.-pelitical unrest -and diplomatic turmoil. It is::therefore .not
surprising to anyone that corporate America remains hesitant to make commrtments regarding

capital investment, employment and office space.

Like most of.our. peericompanies,:Koger: was:not immune:to-these:challenging circumstances.

And yet, in spite of these and other events, almost all of our properties continued to outperform
- their markets...:We:have:continued: te: stay:ahead-of the: competition: ‘For 2002 Koger exceeded
~its. own ‘estimates -of : funds: from..operations,-:delivering =$2:05: pet: fully “diluted- share:vand
mcreasmg ‘same store net operatmg mcome by 1.4% to $70 3 mrllron from $69 3 million in 2001

N »\l.v:‘ - B i I ‘A‘ v}' ."“V'-
P A Vot S Y f o

,‘Despltes generally weakemng -economic: cond1t1ons throughout our markets -Koger: generated
-almost-1:8 million square feet of.leasing:volume:during 2002, mamtarned ‘our existing averdge
-net rental rates on renewing leases: and retamed over: 64 percent of our tenants whose leases
z«explred durmg the year SNy ' ! g 2 T

oy Hreloo ey

We also contmued to aggressrvely control and manage our operatmg expenses and:were able to
increase our margins to 63.4 percent from 62.8 percent a year earller desprte srgmﬁcant upward
“pressure on-certain operating expenses such'as insurance:’ RHE L

For the third consecutive year, Koger paid our shareholders “dividends of at least $1.40 per share,
~and in spite.of a-3:68 percent decline iniour stock price, we: still delivered dn: overall return:of
3573 percent for 2002 easrly beatmg the werghted average total return for the REIT ’s n our: peer
;group T S s 7 R T - ‘

“In- 2002 your- Board of D1rectors senior . management ‘and all Koger associates contlnued our
- mission of ‘optimizing. your company’sfinancial position and advancing our-long-term-strategy
“for growth. . Marching forward - with -our. capital* redeployment ‘plan that: started=with the
-Décember 2001 sale-of.$300 million of non-core-assets; in January:2002; Koger acquired Three
Ravinia Drive, an-803,000 square: foot, 31 story suburban office:building in-the heartof the
Central Perimeter area of Atlanta, Georgia. In December 2002, Koger acquired The ‘Lakes on
Post Oak, a three building, 1.2 million square foot suburban office complex located in the
sprestigious Galleria/West L.oop area of ' Houston; Texas. These twotransactions added over $227
-million of high=quality assets to your company’s balance sheet, and positioned Koger tor take full
advantage of the excellent long- ~term fundamentals in these major markets o :
For. 2@03', we expect continued softneS‘Schroughout our mar-kets fo'r ofﬁC‘efspace demand which
- will likely result in-lower occupancies and tenant retention, greater concessions, 16wer net ‘rents
on new and renewing leases and continuing competition against sublét space. :Having:$aid that,
and barring a protracted war in Iraq or a major terrorist attack on U.S. interests, we are cautiously
‘optimistic ‘that-a general economic’rebound may occur in"late 2003 or early 2004: -However,
‘because ourindustry: generally tends to lag the. overall economy-we iare not antlerpatmg a
significant positive near-term impact on-our financial performance. A
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In addition, our 2003 results will be negatively affected by the December-2002-loss of the leasing
and management revenues of the AP-Knight LP portfolio as well as the impending loss of
income from the asset management of the Crocker Realty Trust LP portfolio. Koger had
previously undertaken - both of these third party assignments on a short-térm basis and had
“anticipated the loss of‘these revenue’ streams, Wthh in any case; are not a-cofe- e]ement of ‘its
- business strategy. a a C

On a somewhat positive note, we believe the uncertain economy will continue to moderate the
~cost.of debt capltal and ant1c1pate only slight upward movement in rates for the rest of 2003

We mtend to- contmue our: acqmsmon of ex1stmg propertres ‘in-.our.-core and target markets and
work: diligently: to identify buying opportunities at capitalization rates that'make sense to-us. :In
.spite of the current weakness in . many real estate investment fundamentals, our recent-experience
has been that there has generally been a low level of trading activity. High-quality assets with
Jittle -or no short-term;-exposure are demanding .premium prices :and. are often.acquired- by
~domestic and offshore capital seeking: alternative investments: to an.underperforming..stock
-market. Properties with existing occupancy ‘issues -and near-term rollover have not:been well
received. We believe strongly, however, that the major Southeastern markets offer. outstanding
long-term characteristics and will yle]d excellent investment opportunmes as sellers brmg more
propertles to. market: : : ‘ : -

Where appropnate and when dnven by specrfrc demand we w1l] employ our exrstmg land bank
to develop additional office buildings.

<

During the past two years, various. high-profile management and accounting scandals:within
major companies have undermined investor confidence in the public markets:.: ‘The. Congress’
responded to this crisis by passing the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Act”). This sweeping
legislation establishes many new requirements, not the least of which concerns both the
composition and duties of audit committees.. Most of .the major.stock exchanges-have also
proposed reforms .to- their listing standards.  The-resulting effects of these -changes will-be a
-heightened. emphasis on:-corporate  governance; greater concern over management ‘ethics and
behavior, increased scrutiny from. external auditors..and . ongoing efforts by industry. leading
compames to develop, 1mplement and - mamtam a“culture .that fosters transparency and. full
disclosure.: ~

‘At Koger, each of the. Audit, Compensation, and Nominating .and .Corporate Governance
Committees  of the Board of Directors ;has adopted a new charter that clearly defines:its
objectives and responsibilities. Each of these committees is comprised of independent directors.
We have also adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all of our employees and
-directors. . Your Board of Directors and senior executives of the. Company are committed to
embracing the corporate governance standards promulgated under the Act, and we will keep you
fully informed:of our progress. : E :

As we look mto 2003 and beyond .we-are OptlmlSth about the long term future of your; Company
in particular and the real estate industry in gemeral. We have a strong management team, one
that has both great breadth as well as depth of experience. Our on-site property:management and




leasing teams have superior knowledge of their markets and are committed to serving the needs
of our over 900 tenants. Our corporate staff is dedicated and works with great diligence and
professionalism to support senior management and property operations. While we know that the
short-term prospects for the Company and for our industry present significant challenges, we
readily accept those challenges and look forward to the opportunities they bring.

As always, we sincerely appreciate your interest and support, and we look forward confidently to
our continued success.

Vet & (Lgha Jo q&/\ ,

Victor A. Hughes, Jr. Thomas J. Crocker
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Olfficer

The foregoing message to the Shareholders contains forward-looking statements concerning 2003. The
actual results of operations for 2003 could differ materially from those projected because of factors affecting the
financial markets, reactions of the Company’s existing and prospective investors, the ability of the Company to
identify and execute development projects and acquisition opportunities, the ability of the Company to renew and
enter into new leases on favorable terms, and other risk factors. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and ** Cautionary Statement Relevant to Forward-Looking
Information for Purpose of the 'Safe Harbor' Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.
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- PARTk - .-
ltem1 BUSINESS ey e

General

Koger Equrty, Inc (“KE”) isa self admrnrstered and selt managed equnty real estate mvestment trust ( “REIT’) whrch
develops owns; operates, leases and manages suburban office buildings in metropolitan areas jin-the southeastern.and
southwestern;United States... At December 31,2002, KE’ 's.portfolio of assets.consisted of 124 office buildings totaling8.93
million rentable square feet located in 16 suburban office projects in.9 metropolitan-areas in the seutheastern United States
and Houston, Texas (the £Office Projects”): KE directly owns-107 of the 124 office buildings in its current portfolio.-Koger-:
Vanguard Partners, L.P. (‘KVP”) is a.consolidated wholly: owned subsidiary limited partnership.and.owns a suburban office
project in Charlotte, North Carolina consisting of 13 office. buildings containing. approximately 526,000 rentable square feet.
Koger:Ravinia, LLC.(*KRLLC”) is a consolidated wholly- owned subsidiary limited: liability .company and, owns-a single
suburban oﬁlce building in:Atlanta, Georgia containing 805,000 rentable square feet.- Koger Post Oak Limited Partnership
(*KPOLP"} is a consolidated wholly owned subsidiary limited partnership and owns 3 suburban office buildings in-Houston;
Texas totaling approximately 1.2 million rentable square feet. Koger Post Oak, Inc. (“KPQ”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
KE, is the: general pariner of KPOLP...-The Office: Projects were on average 84% occupied at-December 31; 2002. KE
expects to continue to acquire existing properties.in markets compatlble with its long-term mvestment strategy and. may also
develop new propertres in those markets when: economlcally desrrable LT, e SETR

Dunng December 2001 KE sold 75 suburban ofﬂce burldlngs and one: retarl center contarnrng more. than 3. 9 mlllloni
rentable square feet, located in San Antonio and Austin, Texas; Greensboro and Charlotte, North C_arolrna Greenville; South
Carolina;.and: Brrmlngham Alabamaito AP- nght LP (“AP Knrght ) an. affiliate of Apollo. Real Estate Investment: Fund
(“Apollo) . e e

Durrng January 2002 the Company acqurred all of the remarnrng lrmlted partnershrp unrts ln KVP These partnershlp,
umts were convertible into 999,710 shares.of the Company’s common.stock. On January 31; 2002, KRLLC acquired ;Three
Ravinia Drive, an 805,000 square foot suburban office building {ocated in-Atlanta, Georgia. On December 6;2002, KPOLP-
acquired The Lakes on Post Oak, a 1.2 million square foot, three office. building.complex in:Houston, Texas..

KE owns approximately 55.8 acres of unencumbered land held for development and approximately 23:2.acres-of
unencumbered land held for sale. A majority of the land held for development adjoins four of the Office Projects, which have
infrastructure, including roads;and utilities, in place. The remaining land held for development-adjoins properties which were
sold during.2001. KE interids over time to develop and construct office buildings using.this land and to-acquire-additional

land for development In addmon KE provrdes leasing,: management and other customary tenant- related services: for the.
Oﬁlce Prorects r : o P s

ln addrtron to managlng its own. propertres KE provrdes property and asset management serwces through 1ts wholly
owned subsidiaries, Southeast Properties Holding Corporation (*Southeast"), Koger Real:Estate Services;nc. ("KRES")and
Koger Realty: Services, Inc. (‘KRSI") for office-buildings-owned by third parties (KE, KVP,; Southeast , KRES, KRSI, KRLLC;
KPO, and KPOLP are hereafter referred to as the “Company”). Through August2001; KRSl provided property management
services to Koala Realty Holding Company, Inc. (“Koala”) for 55 office properties. On December 12, 2001, KRSI began
providing property management services to the properties sold to AP-Knight. On December 31, 2002, ‘the -property
management agreement between AP-Knight and KRS! was terminated. The Company currently provides asset
management servicesto Crocker Realty Trust for offrce propertres contarmng approxrmately 4.6 mrllron square feet

KE operates in a manner so as to- qualrfy asa REIT under the provrsrons ot the lnternal Revenue Code of z1 986 as
amended (the “Code”).. As a REIT, the Company will not, with.certain limited exceptions, be taxed at the-corporate levelon
taxable income distributed to its shareholders on a current basis. - The Company distributes at least 90 percent of its annual
REIT taxable income (which term is used herein as defined and modified in the Code) to its shareholders. -, © & .
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To qualify as a REIT, a corporation must meet certain substantive tests: (a) at least 95 percent of its gross income must
be derived from certain passive and real estate sources; (b) at least 75 percent of its gross income must be derived from
certain real estate sources; (c) at the close of each calendar quarter, it must meet certain tests designed to ensure that its
assets consist principally (at least 75 percent by value) of real estate assets, cash and cash equivalents and that its holdings
of securities are adequately diversified; (d) each year, it must distribute at least 90 percent of its REIT taxable income; and
(e) at no time during the second half of any ¢alendar year:may-the Company be “closely held™ (i.e:, have-more-than 50
percent in value of its outstanding stock owned, directly, indirectly or construttively, by-not mote than five individuals). The'
¢onstructive ownership rules; among other things, treat the shareholders of a corporation as éwning proportioriately’any
stock in another cofporation-owned by the first corporation. Management fee revenue does not: qualify-as‘real estate or
passive income for purposes of determining whatherthé Company has met the REIT requrrements that at least 95 percent of:
the Company's gross incomie'be‘derived from certain real estate and-passive'sotirces afd that atleast 75 percent of its gross
income be derived from certain real estate sources. Accordingly, in thie'event the-Company derives income in excess of five:
percentfrom management-and other nion-real estate™and "non- passive" activities; the Company would no longer quahfy as
a REIT for fedetal income tax purposes and would be fequired to pay federal income taxesasa busrness corporatron The
income earned by KRSI is not* |ncIuded in determrmng KE g quahfrcatron as a REIT S S

‘ Two major governmentat tenants when att of therr respectrve departments and agencies’ wmch tease space in the'
Companys buildings are: combined; lease more than ten”percent of the:rentablei area of the Company's buildings and
contribute more than ten percent of the Company’s-annualizéd-rentals as*of Décembet 31,2002: At that date, the Unitéd
States of America leased 12.4 percent of the Company’s rentable square feet and accounted for an aggregate of 12.3
percent of the: Company’s.annualized rents.“In‘addition, the State of Florida leased 9.2 percent of the Company’s reéntable
square feet and accounted -for 9.2 percent of the Company’s-annualized rents. in‘additionto the United States of America
and the State of Florida, some of the'Company's principal tenants are Bliie Cross and Blue Shield of Flerida, Six Continents
Hotels, Bechtel Corporation, CitiFinancial, Landstar System Holdings, Siemens Westinghouse, Zurich Insurance; and
Hanover Insurance. Governmental tenants (inciuding the State of Florida and the United States of America), which account
for 24.4 percent of the' Company's leased space, may be: subject-to-budget reductions in- timesof recession and
governmental austérity measures.: There can'be no assurance that governmentat -appropriations for rents’may-not be
reduced. Additionallyi;certain private-sector ténants, which-have: contnbuted to the Companys rent stream may reduce therr _
current demands; or curtail their futuré'need, for additional office space. * - : S

Competmon ‘

*The: Company competes inthe Ieasrng of: offrce space wrth a consrderabte number of other realty concems mctudrng
Iocal -regional and national, some of iwhich have greater resources than the: Company. Through its ownership and
management of suburban office parks; the Company seeks to attract teriants by offering office space that has; among other
advantages, convenient access to residential areas. [n recent years local, regional and national concerns have:built
competing office parks and single buildings in suburban areas in which the Company's Office Projects are located. In
addition, the Company competes for tenants with large high-rise office buildings generally: located inthe downtown business
districts of these metropolitan- areas. “'Although competition from other lessors of office’ space varies from'eity to city, the
Company has been able to achieve and maintain what it consrders satrsfactory occupancy tevets at satrsfactory rental rates
grven current market and economrc condmons »

InvestmentPollcres

The Company seeks to capitalize on some of its competitive advantages, such-as the value of its-franchise in the
suburban office park market and its operating systems, development expertise, acquisition expertise and unimproved land
available for development. The Company intends to, continue-to develop and construct office buildings primarily-using its
existing inventory of 55.8 acres of land held for development, most of which is partially or whelly improved with stréets and/or
utilities and is located in various metropolitan areas where the Company currently operates or manages suburban:office
buildings. The Company also intends to acquire existing office buildings or additional land for development in'markets that
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the-Company considers favorable. Although all of the Company’s properties are located in the Southeast-and-Houston,
Texas, management does notnecessarily limit the Company’s development and acqursrtlons actlvmes to any pamcular area.
The Company may also seII Oh‘lce Pro;ecls located in certaln markets. ;

In 2000 the Company has adopted a plan to repurchase up to 2.65 million shares of its common stock of whrch 1.21
million shares have been repurchased. See “Financing Activities” in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations lorfurther intormation S L L £l

The investment pollcres of the Company may be changed by its drrectors at'any trme wrthout notlce to, or-a’ vote of
shareholders. Although the Company:has no fixed policy which limits the.percentage of its assets which may bé invested in
any one type of investment or the geographic areas in which the Company may acquire properties, the Company intends to
continue to operate so as to qualify for tax treatment as a REIT. The Company.may in:the future invest:in other types of
office buildings, apartment buildings, shopping centers, and other properties. The Company also may invest in the securities
(including mortgages):of companies primarily engaged in real estate activities; howéver, it does not intend to become an
investment company regulated under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

For the year ended Decémber 31, 2002, all of the Company's rental revenues were derived from buildings purchased or
developed-by the Company. The Company's 2002 interest revenues were: derrved from temporary cash investments and
notes recervable from stock sales to current employees '

Employees

The Company currently has a- combmed financial, administrative, leasing, and center malntenance staff of
approximately 140 employees. An on-site general manager is responsibie for the leasing and operatrons of all burldrngs in: 2
Koger Center or metropolitan area. T T e

7

ltem 2. PROPERTIES

General -

As of December 31, 2002, the Company owned 124 office buildings located in the nine metropolitan..areas -of
Jacksonville, Orlando, St. Petersburg; and Tallahassee, Florida; Atlanta, Georgia; Charlotte, North Carolina; Memphis;
Tennessee; Houston, Texas; and Richmond, Virginia. The Office Projects acquired and developed by the Company have
campus-like settings with extensive landscaping and ample tenant parking. The Office Projects are generally low-rise, mid-
rise, and high-rise structures of contemporary design and constructed of masonry, concrete and steel, with facings of-brick,
concrete and glass. The Office Projects are-generally located with easy access, via expressways, to the central-business

district and to shopping and residential areas in the respective communities. The properties are well maintained and
adequately covered by insurance. : :

Leases on the Office Projects vary between net leases (under which the tenant pays a proportionate share of operating
expenses, such as utilities, insurance, property taxes and repairs), base year leases (under which the tenant pays-a
proportionate share of operatlng expenses in excess of a fixed amount), and gross leases (under which the Company pays
all siich items). Most leases are on a base year basis and are for terms generally ranging from three to five years. :In some
instances, such as when a tenant rents the entire building, leases are for terms of up to 20 years. As of December 31,2002,
the Office Projects were on average 84 percent occupied and the average annual base rent per rentable square foot
occupied was $17.01. The Office Projects are occupied-by numerous tenants (approximately 940 leases) many of whom
lease relatrvely small amounts of space, conducting a broad range of commercial activities.

New leases and renewals of existing leases are negotiated at the current market rate at the date of execution. The
Company endeavors to include escalation provisions in all of its leases. As of December 31, 2002, approximately two
percent of the Company’s annualized gross rental revenues were derived from existing leases containing rental escalation
provisions based upon changes in the Consumer Price Index (some of which contain maximum rates of increases);
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approximately 97.percent of such revenues were derived from leases containing escalation provisions based upon:fixed
steps or real estate tax and operating expense increases; and approximately one percent:of such revenues were derived
from leases without escalation provisions. Some of the Company's leases contain options which allow the lessee to renew

for varying periods, generally at the same rental rate and subject, in most instances, to Consumer Price Index escalation
provisions. : : ' o

The Company owns approximately 85 acres of unimproved land (55.8 acres held for development, 23.2 acres held for
sale and six acres not suitable for development) located in the metropolitan areas of Birmingham, Alabama; Orlando and St.

Petersburg, Florida; Atlanta, Georgia; Charlotte and Greensboro, North Carolina; and Columbia and Greenville, South
Carolina. Each of these parcels of land has been partially or wholly developed with streets and/or utilities. -

Property Location and Other Information

The following table sets forth information relating to.the properties owned by the Company as of December 31, 2002.

Weighted
: Average : T - Land P
Number - Ageof . ... - Improved - Unimproved
of Buildings - . Rentable.  with Bldgs: <Land -

Office Project/Location Buildings (InYears){(1) _Saq.Ft. (In Acres) (In Acres)
Atlanta Chamblee 21 20 1,117,569 76.2 25 . -
Atlanta Gwinnett 3 6 262,789 15.9 19.6
Atlanta Perimeter C - 17 176,503 5.3 SR
Atlanta-Three Ravinia 1 11 804528 - = - 3.8 B
Birmingham Colonnade ' 16.5
Charlotte Carmel 7.7
Charlotte University 2 4 182,852 18.7 L
Charlotte Vanguard 13 19 526,177 39.7 17.1
Columbia Spring Valley Co 10
Greensboro Wendover 9.1
Greenville Park Central . - s - ~ 35
Houston Post Oak 3 22 1,205,728 11.4 ’
Jacksonville Baymeadows 7 10 749,787 51.1
Jacksonville JTB 4 3 416,773 -32.0
Memphis Germantown 6 -9 531,506 -~ 346 |
Orlando Central 21 3 © 1 616,154" 4.7 1.3
Orlando Lake Mary 2 o4 303,481 - 202 ¢
Orlando University 5 8 384,193 . 271
Richmond Paragon 1 17 145,127 8.1
St. Petersburg 15 19 669,040 68.7 - 67
Tallahassee 19 20 - 833,786 627 e
. Total 124 8,925,993 - 5202 85.0

Weighted Average 16 ’

(1) The age of each office building was weighted by the rentable square feét for such office building to determine the
weighted average age of (a) the buildings in-each Office Project or location and (b) all Office Projects owned by the
Company. v‘ : ‘ I



Percent Occupied and Average Rental Rates

The following table sets forth, with respect to each Office Project, the number of buildings, number of leases, rentable
square feet, percent occupied, and the average annual rent per rentable square foot occupied as of December 31, 2002.

. o _ Average
Number Number -Rentable , ' - Annual
: C : of of Square . = Percent Base Rent Per
Office Project/Location Buildings Leases Feet Occupied (1)  Square Foot (2)
Atlanta Chamblee : 21 . 124 1,117,569 95% $18.08
Atlanta Gwinnett =~ | - ‘ 3 : 51 262,789 - - 91% 18.79 -
Atlanta Perimeter 1 12 - 176,503 63% - 2046
Atianta Three Ravinia (3) 1 19 804,528 63% 17.49 (4)
Charlotte University 2 16. . 182,852 96% 18.28
Charlotte Vanguard 13 61 526,177 75% 16.88
Houston Post-Oak (3) - 3 103 1,205,728 78% 17.42
Jacksonville'Baymeadows 7 .43 749,787 9% - 14.84 (4)
Jacksonville JTB ™ - 4 R 416,773 100% - 12.60 (4)
Memphis Germantown’ 6. - 78 531,506 78% 18.64
Orlando Central 21 140 616,154 97% 16.13
Orlando Lake Mary 2 19 303,481 75% 19.63
Orlando University 5 60 384,193 87% 18.93
Richmond Paragon T 26 145,127 - 91% 18.73
St. Petersburg 15 g 117 669,040 87% 16.27
Tallahassee _19 62 833,786 1% 17.16
Total 124 _938 8,925,993
Weighted Average - Total Company 4 . 84% $17.01
Weighted Average - Operational Buildings - 7 86% . $16.90
Weighted Average - Buildings in Lease-up : S L % 17.44

(1) The percent occupied rates have been calculated by dividing total rentable square feet occupied in a building by
rentable square feet in such building. .

(2) - Rental rates are computed by dividing-(a) total annualized base rents (which excludes expense pass-throughs and
reimbursements) for an Office Project as of December 31, 2002 by (b) the rentable square feet applicable to such total

. annualized base rents. _ , - . i

(3) Currently in the lease-up period. The Company considers an acquired building to be in a lease-up period until the
earlier of 85% occupancy or 18 months after acquisition or substantial completion.

(4) Leases are “triple net” where tenants pay substantially all operating costs in addition to base rent.



Lease Expirations on the Company's Properties

The following schedule‘sets forth with respect to all of the Office Projects (a) the number of leases which will expire in
calendar years 2003 through 2011, (b) the total rentable area in 'square feet covered by such leases, (c) the percentage of
total rentable square feet leased represented by such leases, (d) the avérage annual rent per square foot for such leases,
(e) the-current annualized base rents represented by such leases, and (f) the percentage of gross annualized base rents --
contributed by such leases. This information is based on the buildings owned by the Company on December 31, 2002 and

on the terms of leases in effect as of December 31, 2002, on'the basis of then existing base rentals, and without regard to -

the exercise of options to renew. Furthermore; the information below does not: reflect that some léases have | {provisions for ‘

early termination for various reasons, including, in the case of government entities, lack of budget appropnatlons Leases
were renewed on approximately 64 percent, 66 percent and 61 percent of the Company’s square feet, whrch were scheduled o
to expire dunng 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectrvely ) SR o

- Percentage of - Average ’ ‘ e Percentage S
* Total Square- Annual Rent Total -.of Total -
Number of Numberof =~ FeetLeased per Square Annualized Annual Rents
Leases - Square Feet  Represented by Foot Under Rents Under Represented by
Period =~ _Expiring __Expiring . Expiring Leases Expiring Leases Expiring Leases ExprrrnLL_eases
2003 . 352 1,827,632 . 24.4% v $16.77. . $ 30,654,269 "',24.1°/q',,_,,£
2004 193 901,227 12.1% 17.08 - 15,397,383 T 121%
2005 175 987,462 13.2% . 16.68 16,468,491 _’_12 9%
2006 85 624,266 . 83% . 17.63 11,006,163 87%;.;
2007 72 960,378.. = 12.8% 16.89 16,216,885 . 128%
2008 24 446,148 . 6.0% . 18.23. 8,133,132 © '6.4% !
2009 19 1,061,786 “ji'..' - 142% 18.15. = 19,271,218 15.2%.
2010 6 162,913 -~ © 22% 16.25 - 2,647,992 2.1%
2011 ' 3 79,844 1.1% 16.28 ©1,2909956 T 1:0% ¢
Other - _9 422,721 5.7% 1424 - . _°6,020296 ‘" 4. _47%
Total 938 7,474,377 100.0% $17.01 : $127.115.785 - 1100.0%

Building Improvements, Tenant Improvements and Deferred Tenarit Costs on the Company s Propertres L

The following table sets forth certain information :with respect to the. burldlng |mprovements made and ‘tenant
improvement costs and deferred tenant costs (leasing.commiissions and tenant relocation costs) incurred, by the Company

during the three years ended December 31, 2002 The mformatlon set forth below is not necessanly mdrcatrve of future
expenditures for these items. - LT 4 , :

Building Improvements » Tenant lmprovements; oo Deferred Tenant Costs -

Per Average Per Average Per Average ‘
Usable Sq. Usable Sq. Usable Sq.
Year ‘ Total Ft. Owned(4) Total Ft. Owned (4) Total. Ft. Owned (4)
2000 (1) $4,005,000 $0.48 $8,362,000 $1.00 $1,711,000 $0.20
2001 (2) - 4,829,000 0.58 6,666,000 0.80 1,381,000 0.17
2002 (3) 4,383,000 0.69 5,156,000 0.81 1,338,000 0.21

) Excludes the 18 buildings for which construction was completed during 1998, 1999 and 2000.

) Excludes the 13 buildings for which construction was completed during 1999, 2000 and 2001.

) Excludes the 8 buildings constructed and the 2 properties acquired during 2000, 2001 and 2002.
) Peraverage rentable square foot for 2002.




Fixed Rate Indebtedness on the Company's Properties

The following table sets forth with respect to each Office Project the principal amount (dollars in thousands) 6f and the
weighted average interest rate on, the indebtedness of the: Company-having a fixed interest rate and encumbenng the
Company s properties in such Office Project as of December 31, 2002.

Weighted

Mortgage Average

R ve oo e choan o Interest
Office Project Balance _Rate

v« Atlanta Chamblee: + <~ . - 0 0. , .

Atlanta Gwinnett e 10,476 - 8 26% ,

Atlanta Perimeter 7,055 8.26%

Atlanta Three Ravinia = T 85,000 5.26%

_Charlotte University L . 0 -

_ Gharlotte Vanguard oo 19,086 218.20%
Houston Post Oak - - R s 0. L -
-Jacksonville Baymeadows : P 33,073 - 7.86%
Jacksonville JTB - * B o 17,061 . - - .8.26%
- Memphis Germantown' L E 23,796 '7.84%
Orlando Central 25,801 8.26%

-+~ Orlando'Lake:Mary- > . -t w0 125190 o 8.26%
w1 Orlande University o0 o s DO2RE e 7.25%
' " Richmond-Paragon- =~ . . 0 owiel 7718 e '8.00%

St: Petersburg ¢ .- v - S e 27216 © 8.26%
Tallahassee o .88132 . ¢ 8.10%
Total $327,189 - _1.32%

A mortgage loan w;th Nonhwestern Mutual Llfe lnsurance Company encumbers several Off;ce Pro;ects and the
outstanding principal amount on this mortgage loan has been allocated based upon the square footage of the collateral in
the applicable Office Project. For additional information on. these Ioans see Note 3, “Mortgages and Loans Payable" of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ' -

Indebtedness with Variable Interest Rates

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had an outstanding balance of $26 million on its $100 million secured
revolving credit facility and-$78.5: million in termloans with: variable interest rates encumbering certain of the Company’s
properties. The following table sets forth historical information with respect to indebtedness having variable:interest rates
(dollars in thousands):

oo .+ Weighted-...-» -~ - - .Approximate .~ Approximate-. .
, Balance Average o Maxnmumg - - Average Wid.-Avg. Int. -
Year Ended at End Int. Rate at Amount Amount Rate During
December 31 .of Period .. End of Period . Outstandlng ~ OQutstanding _the Period
S 2002 104509 0 42% . '$192509°  $75,498 T 41%
2001 1,544 7.9% - 101,577 90,009 57%
2000 90,000 8.1% 123,500 96,262 7.9%



ltem 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.

Ite'm_:‘4.. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO'A‘VOTE“OFlSECURITYiHOLDERS e e
None. SIS B

PART i
Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Company s'common stock is lrsted on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol KE The hrgh and—
low closing sales pnces for the periods rndrcated in the table below were: : :

Years R R
2002 2001 - 2000
Quarter Ended ~_High Low :«: High Low High.. - : . Low
March 31 -$17.95 $15.85. $15.97 $13.35 $17.9375 $15.5000
June 30 :2.19.30 17147 16.60 14.07 -18.8750 .5 -+16.5625
September 30 S 18.71 15.75 ¢+ o 17.51 15.95 17.4375 % -~ 16.6250

- December 31 17 18 156.00. .~ 18.10 16.30 16. 9375 - 15:0625

Any dividend pard in: respect of the Company s common stock during the last quarter of each yearlwrll sif necessary, be
adjusted to satisfy the. REIT qualification requirément that at least 90 percent of the Company’s REIT.taxable income for
such taxable year be-distributed. The Company’sisecured revolving credit facility requires the Company to maintain certain
financial ratios, whichincludes a limitation on dividends. However, this covenant does not restrict the Company frem paying
the dividends requrred to maintain its qualrfrcatlon as a RElT S

Set forth below are the dividends per share pard durrng the three years ended December 31, 2002.

iQuarter,-Ended' oo 2002 - 2_09_1_ ’M Co -
March 31 $.35 $.35 $.35

June 30 .35 .35 .35

September 30 .35 35 .35#;

December 31 35 .35 35

al A.~

On January 15 2002 the Company pard a capltal garn drstrlbutlon in the form of ai specral dlvrdend of $1 74 per share
to shareholders of record on December.28, 2001z iy = vor v Lo o ot e s

On February 6, 2003, the Company paid a quarterly dividend of $0.35 per share to shareholders of record on
December 31, 2002. In addition; the Company’s Board of Directors has declared a quarterly dividend of $0.35 per share
payable on May 1, 2003, to shareholders of record on March 31 2003

On February 28,2003, there were approxrmately 1,200 shareholders of record and the closrng pnce of the Company S
common stock on the New, York Stock Exchange was $15.48.
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ltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 7 = o e Dl

. The:following selected financial data should be readin conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and. Analysis of

Flnanctal Condition: and Results of: Operatlons and the: Consolldated Fmanmal Statements (as deflned below) and the notes
thereto : - :

: ' T T e ; (ln thousands except per share and propertydata)
Income lnformatlon e PTR 2002 2001 2000 1999 .o 1998
Rental revenues and other rental services $126,404 $1 65,623 $164,733 $156,153 $1 33, 663
Interest revenues 405 776 703 457 2446
Total operating revenues (1) : 129,751 169,703 166,526 158,537 135 240
Property operatlons expense . . 46235 . 61608 61868 60582 . 53719
Depreciation and amortization (1) Gelees Tt 27.908 35,009 ¢ 34,244 311477 0 27,454
Mortgage and loan interesf (1)~ =~~~ T T Sopy4st T 26142 28457 22730 ¢ 17,543
i General and’ admlnlstratlve expense T S I § SRR . 75 130 '2‘20,217:' ' ""'8633 S 6,958
Net income:: e N AR L T S .16,'423 ©.73,223 17+ 27,153+ 736,586 - 29,602
" Earnings pershare dlluted 0.77 2.75 1.0+ 135 0 110
Dwndends declared per common share 1.40 3.14 1.40 1.35 1.15

Woighted verage st oustaning - died 21378 el vl s s

'BalanceS ‘et‘lnformatlon Lo e e T T
’Gperatlng propertles (before deprematlon) ST 4897,158 "$663 286" $946,780""' $927,523 $872183
Undeveioped land -+ ) LT 3R0e 13,855 0 {3975 17137° "~ - 20,535"
Total assets G E s an 8057086, 600,585 i - 851,022 - 885,739 ¢ .834,995:
Mortgages and loans payable 431,698 248,683 343,287 351,528 307,903
Total shareholders eqwty et o n e, 343,068 00 354,542 448,483 ¢ - 467,826 . 464,763

,Other lnformatlon

: Funds from. operatron.s_(2 , ,
lncome Dbefore interest expense, tn‘come taxes

“total deprecratlon and amortization 7 seg 063 , $135 118 3 89 533 $ 90 980 s 75 555

Numberotbunldmgs(atend ofpenod) e 424 ‘,‘ 120 ST Tqgat e Thpyg T Togy
Pefcent occupied (atend of perod) + AT T 84% T Q0% - 90% - - v93% ¢ -90%

'$‘4éf,éa4,__f $769681 S 56107 ' 65011 § 56486

(1) Certain amounts have been reclassified-for.comparability: with current year presentation. .. -~ . .

(2) The Company believes that Funds from Operations is one measure:of the performance of an equity. FlElT Funds from Operatrons
o should. not be. consrdered asan alternatrve to etmcome asan mdlcatlon of the Company S flnanmal performance or to.cash flow
'from operatlng actwttnes (detennlned |n,ta ordance wrth GAAP) as a measure of the Companys I|qu1d|ty nor js it necessarlly
C mdlcatlve of sufflcr ! ‘ s. Fund _,from Operatsons is calculated as follows (in thousands)

Yo

B D ST A S M RS R T 2002 ' | 2001 S 2000--- 1999 - “1998
7 NetICom i i Ty s e e L E16; 423""‘-5‘ $73,223  -$27,153° - $36,586 - $29,602'
?‘.f"DepreClatlon real estate S L e D 0261880 v 1132261 T 31,7200 - 28,800 . 1251146
-sAmontization --deferred tenant costs. ;i e, b oen ahiBRB v 24720 0 1,923 0 12432 ¢ 1,464
Amortization - goodwill 170 170 170 < AT0;
Minority interest 20 1,044 1,156 1,174 139
. Gain.on sale or-disposition of. operatlng properties ... ..o .o oeso{39,189) . (5,963).. (3,846) .
“Gain on sale,or disposition of non operatlng assets.,"'_,’ Y 2 | o (52) 6) - __(35)

Funds from Opérations ~* - $43.834° &Q&ﬁi &ij_ m $56,486

1"



Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS.OF OPERATIONS:

_The following discussion-should be read in conjunction with the selected financial data and the consolidated financial
statements (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) appearing elsewhere in this report:: Historical results and percentage
relationships in the Consolidated Financial Statements, including trends which might appear, should not be taken as
indicative of future operations-or:financial position. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of KE,
Southeast KRES, KRSI KVP; KRLLC, KPO, and KPOLP (collectrvely, the “Company”) R T

GENERAL

The Company has prepared, and i is responsrble tor the accompanying Consolidated. Frnancrat Statements and the
related consotrdated financial information included in thls report Such Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in
accordance with accountrng principles generally accepted in the United States of America; (“GAAP”) and mclude amounts
determined using management's best judgments and estimates of the expected effects of events and transactrons that are
belng accounted for currently a SRR

The Companys independent auditors have audlted the accompanying Consohdated Frnancrat Statements The
objective of their audit, conducted in accordance with audrtmg standards generallj accepted in thé United'States‘of America,
was to express an opinion on the fairness of presentation, in alf material respects, of the Company ) consolldated financial
position, results of operations,-and cash flows in conformity.with GAAP. They evaluated the Companys mternal control
structure to the- extent consrdered necessary by them to determine the audit procedures requrred to support their report on
the. Consohdated Frnancral Statements and not to provrde assurance on such structure. SRR

The Company malntams accountlng and other. control systems which management beheves provrde reasonabte
assurance that the Company’s assets are safeguarded and that the Company's books and records reflect the authorized
transactions of the Company, although there are inherent limitations in any interal control structure, as well & as cost versus
benefit considerations. The Audit"Committee of the Companys Board of Directors, which is composed exclusrvely of
dlrectors who are not officers. of the Company, dlrects matters relatlng to aud|t functlons annually appornts the audrtors
results of the annual audit, and penodrcally reviews the adequacy of the Company's mternat control structure W|th its, external
auditors, its internal auditors and its senior management. :

In December 2001, the Company-sold 75 suburban office buildings; one retail centerand 3.4 acres of unimproved- land
to AP-Knight:LP, a related party, for- approximately'$199,587:000; riet of’ selhng costs, and 5,733,772 shares of the
Company s common stock (which were valued at approxrmatety"$96 327 000) These propertres contained more than 3.9

“milfion’ of refitable” square’ feet and contrlbuted rental’ revenues, of approxrmatety $54.4 mrlhon .during. the year ended
December 31,2001. Rental révenues for the sold properties compnsed approximately’ 33% of the Company’s fotal rental
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001. The results of these properties are included in the operating resuits of the
Company for the period ending,December 31, 2001.: As aresult, certain of the Company’s current operating results, as
compared to the prior year, have been affected by the: sale'of these assets. On January 15, 2002, the Company distributed
a portion of the proceeds above in the torm of a special dividend of $1.74 per share to shareholders of. record on December '
28 2001. : :

L.P. ,-a Delaware limited partnershrp, for approxrmatety $t 6 5 million. These partnershrp units were convemble rnto 999 71 O
shares of the Company'’s common stock.

On January 31, 2002, the Company acquired Three Ravinia Drive, an 805,000 square foot suburban office-
building located in Atlanta, Georgia, for approximately $125.0 million and other transaction costs. As of December 31,
2002, approximately 63% of the property’s rentable space was leased. On December 6, 2002, the Company acquired
The Lakes on Post Oak, an 1.2 million square foot, suburban three office building complex located in Houston, Texas,
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for.approximately $101.5 million-and other transaction costs. As of:December 31, 2002;:approximately 78%.of the .
property’s rentable space was leased. The Company expects.to lease the properties’ vacant space over the next three '
years. The results of the Koger-Vanguard Partners, L.P., Three:Ravinia Drive, and The Lakes on Post Oak acquisitions:
have been included in the Company’s operating results for the period ending December 31, 2002 from:their respective
acqursrtlon dates. '

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

: The Company S sugnrhcant accountlng pohcres are descnbed in Note 1 to the consohdated frnancral statements
included in ltem 8 of this Form 10-K. The Company believes:that its:significant accounting-policies and estimates -
include investments in real estate, depreciation:and amortization, impairment of long-lived ‘assets;, revenue: recognition-,.
allowances for doubtful accounts, minority, interest, federal income taxes; stock optlons talr value of flnancral :
mstruments cash and cash equrvalents and restrrcted cash L : SRS v

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

- Rental Revenues. .Rental and other-rental services revenues decreased $39,272,000 or23.7 percent-from the year
ended December. 31, 2001 to the-year.ended December 31, 2002.: This:.decrease:resulted primarily:-from (i) the-reduction-of
rental revenues due to'the-sale of 75 office buildingsiand one retail center on:December. 12, 2001 {the “2001 Property Sale”)
and (i) the decline in occupancy:in the “same store™universe of propertiesiowned at December 31, 2001-and 2002. The
effect of these decreases was partially offset by an.increase in-rental revenues ($3;247,000) from two;buildings constructed
by the Company in 2001, 11 months of revenues ($12,692,000) fromthe Three Ravinia Drive property,.and approximately
one month of revenue ($1,143,000) from The Lakes on Post Oak property. For 2001, rental revenues increased $890,000 or
0.5percentfromithe yearended December 31,2000 to-the year ended December 31, 2001. This increase-resulted primarily
from (i). the-increase in the:Gompany’s average.réntal rate and (i) increases.in rental revenues ($7,308,000) from.seven
buildings constructed by the-Company. . The effect of these increases.was ‘partially offset by (i) the reduction of rental
revenues.($5,949,000) caused by the sale. of two-office parks during 2000.and75-effice buildings-and one retail center on
December 12, 2001 (the “2001 Property Sale”) and (ii) the decline in occupancy in the “same store” universe of properties
owned at December 31, 2000 and 2001. As of December 31, 2002, the Company's buildings were on average 84 percent

occupred The burtdrngs owned by the Company were on. average 90 percent occupred -at both December 31 2001 and
2000. - . : - L

‘Management Fee Revenues - For *2002,. management fee.revenues decreased $733,000,~as compared to 2001,
This decrease was due-primarily to the-oss of fees fromone managemenit agreement that was terminated in 2001. . This loss
of-fees- was partially offset by fees received from AP-Knight LP under a property management agreement.that began.in
December 2001. AP-Knight LP terminated this:property management agreement effective December 31,:2002: For the year
ended December 31, 2002, management fees and leasing commissions from AP-Knight-LP totaled: approximately
$2,680,000. The loss of such revenues will be-partially-offset by a corresponding reduction in the-direct cost.of management
. fees. For2001, management fee revenues increased $2,287,000, as compared to 2000. This increase was due primarily to
(i).the merger of Koger Realty Services, Inc. into.a wholly owned taxable subsidiary of the Company.on February 1, 2001.
(the_*Merger”) and (ii).the increase-in asset management fees ($156,000) earned from.Crocker Realty: Trust. These
increases were partially offset by reductions in:(i).fees earned under the management contract with Centoff Realty Company,
Inc. (“Centoft”) a subsrdlary of: Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New. York and (i) constructron management fees.

Equlty in Earnlngs trom Unconsolrdated Sub5|d|ary (Koger Realty Servnces lnc) Income from Koger Realty

Servrces inc. decreased $564 OOO for 2001 as compared to 2000, due to the Merger. The subsrdlary was consohdated in
2002. . t .,
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Interest Income. For 2002, interest revenues decreased $371,000, as compared to2001. This decrease was due
primarily to reductions in-interest earned from loans to certain current and former employees and lower effective interest
rates on the Company’s average invested cash balaneces. For 2001, interest income increased $73,000, as compared to
2000, due to additional earnings on larger cash balances resulting from the 2001 Property Sale.

Expenses. Property operations expense includes such charges as utilities, real estate taxes, janitorial, maintenance,
property insurance, provision for uncollectible rents and management costs. ‘During 2002, property operations expense
decreased $15,373,000, compared to 2001, primarily due to (i) the 2001 Property Sale, (i) the Company’s ongoing cost
management:programs, and (i) reductions in the Company’s provision for uncollectible accounts. During 2001, property
operations expense decreased $260,000 or 0.4 percent, compared to 2000, primarily due to the reduction of property
operations expense:($3,365,000) caused by the sale of two office parks during 2000 and the 2001 Property Sale. Most of
this decrease was offset by (i) the increases in property operations expense ($1,870,000) from seven buildings constructed
by the Company and (ii) increases in the Company’s provision for uncollectible accounts. For 2002; 2001 and 2000,
property operations expense as a percentage of total rental and other rental services.revenues was 36 5 percent 37 2
percent and 37.6 percent, respectively. :

Depreciation expense has been calculated on the straight-line method based upon the useful lives of the Company's
depreciable assets, generally 310 40 years. For2002, depreciation expense decreased $6,372,000, compared to 2001, due
to the 2001 Property Sale. The effect of this decrease was partially offset by the acquisition of the Three Ravinia Drive and
The Lakes on Post Oak properties during 2002. For 2001, depreciation expense increased $605,000 or:1.9 percent,
compared to 2000, due to the construction completed during 2000 and 2001. The effect of thrs increase was partrally offset
by the sale of two office: parks during 2000 and the 2001 Property Sale »

In 2002, amortrzat|on expense decreased $819 OOO compared 0. 2001 These decreases were due. primarily. to a
decline in the Company’s expenditures for deferred tenant costs and the Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142 effective January 1,2002. SFAS No. 142 discontinues the practice of amortizing
goodwill. -In 2001, amortization expense increased $269 OOO compared t0-2000, due to deferred tenant costs incurred
durrng 2000 and 2001. : : -

Interest expense decreased $967,000 during 2002, compared to 2001, primarily due to (i) the decrease in the average
balance of mortgages and loans payable and (ii) the decrease in the average interest rate on the Company’s variable rate
loans. For 2001, interest expense decreased $2,045,000 during 2001, compared to 2000, primarily due to the decrease in
the average interest rate on the Company’s variable rate loans. During 2002, 2001, and'2000, the weighted average interest
rate on the Company's variable rate loans was 4.1 percent, 5.7 percent and 7.9 percent, respectively.. The Company's
average outstanding amount under such loans during 2002, 2001, and 2000 was $75,498,000, $90,009,000, .and
$96,262,000, respectively. During 2002, 2001, and 2000, the weighted average interest rate on the Company’s fixed rate
loans was 7.3 percent, 8.0 percent and 8.0 percent, respectively. The Company’s average outstanding amountunder its
fixed rate loans during 2002, 2001, and 2000 was $327,189,000, $250, 373 000 and $255,439,000, respectlvely C

For 2002, general and administrative expenses increased $2,969,000, compared to 2001. Dunng 2002, the Company
expensed $2,118,000 of compensation expense (of which $1,942,000 was general and administrative expense) related to
special-distributions that are probable of being paid under the terms of certain stock options agreements. In-March 2003, the
Company paid special-distributions of $1,740,000 which had.been accrued as of December 31, 2002. The Company also
incurred a one-time curtailment loss of $418,000 related to the resignation of a participant in the Company's retirement plan.
The Company also experienced increases in professional fees for internal audit, legal, and personnel recruiting services.
For 2001, general and administrative expenses decreased $11,805,000, compared to 2000, primarily due to certain non-
recurring charges, including restructuring charges and severance costs, incurred during 2000.

Direct costs of management fees decreased $43,000 during 2002, compared to 2001. Direct costs of management
fees increased $2,480,000 during 2001, compared to 2000, primarily due to the Merger. This increase was partially offset by
declines in costs due to (i) termination of the Centoff management contract and (i) reduction in construction management
services provided to third parties. '
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. Other expenses decreased -$46,000 during 2002, comparedto 2001, primarily due to the reduction in real estate taxes
on unimproved land. Otherexpenses decreased $28,000 during 2001, compared to 2000, primarily due to the reduction in
real-estate taxes on unrmproved land resulting: from the reduction:in the humber of acres held for mvestment and held; for
sale. : Lo : e B

Management periodically reviews its investment in properties for evidence of impairments in value. Factors considered
consist of, but are:not limited to: current and projected-occupancy rates, market-conditions in different geographic regions,
and management's plans with respect1o its-properties...If management.were to.conclude that-expected cash flows would not
enable.the Company to recover the carrying amount-of its investments, fosses would be recorded and asset values would be
reduced.-No such rmpalrments in vatue were recognlzed durrng 2002 2001 :0r-2000: . :

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESDURCES

Operatlng Actlvrtles Dunng the year ended December 31 2002 the Company generated approxrmately $46 7
mrlhon in net cash from operating activities. , The Company's primary internal sources of cash are. (i) the collection of rents
from buildings owned by the Company and (i) the receipt of management fees paid to the Company in respect of properties
managed on behalf of AP-Knight LP-and Crocker Realty Trust.-As.a REIT for Federal income tax purposes;, the Company is
required.to pay-out annually, as dividends; 90 percent of its REIT taxable income (which, due to non-cash charges, including
depreciation andnet operating-loss carryforwards, may be substantially less than cash flow). In the past, the Company. has
paid out.dividends in amounts at least equal to.its REIT taxable income. -The Company:believes that its cash provided by
operating activities-and its current cash balance will be sufficient to cover. debt service payments and to pay the dividends
requrred to maintain REIT status through -2003. o : L : .

The level ot cash ﬂow generated by rentsvdepends pnmarrly on the occupancy rates of the Company s: burldrngs and
changes in rental.rates on.new and.renewed leases and under escalation .provisions. contained in-most-leases. As.of
December 31, 2002, approxrmately 99 percent of the Company's annualized gross rental-revenues were derived from
existing leases containing provisions for rent escalations. However, market conditions may prevent the Company from
escalatlng rents: under such provrsrons : R S

As of December 31 2002 Ieases representrng approxrmately 24 1 percent of the gross annuatrzed rent from the
Company s properties, without regard to.the exercise of options to renew, were due to expire durrng 2003.-This represents
approximately 350 leases for space in-buildings located in15of the_Companys 16 Office Projects. Certain of these tenants
may not renew their leases or may reduce their demand for space.: Leases were renewed on approximately 64 percent, 66
percent and 61 percent of the Company's rentable square feet, which were scheduled to expire during 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. For those leases which-renewed.during 2002, the average:base rental rate increased from $17.23 to §17.44,
an increase of 1.2 percent., Current. market conditions in-certain markets-may require that rental.rates at which leases are
renewed or at which vacated space is leased be lower than rental rates under existing leases.. Based upon the amount of
leases which will expire during 2003 and the competition for tenants in the markets in which the Company operates, the
Company-has offered, and expects o centinue to offer, incentives to certain new and renewal tenants. These incentives may
mclude the payment of tenant |mprovement costs-and; in certain. markets reduced rents during.initial Iease penods

The Company has hrstorrcally beneflted from generatly posmve economrc condrtrons and stable occupancy Ievels in
many of the metropolitan areas in which the Company owns office buildings. The Company.believesthat the southeastern
and southwestern United States provides significant economic growth potential due to its diverse regional economies,
expanding . metropolitan, areas, . skilled - work- force-and moderate labor costs. However, the Company is currently
experiencing a slowdown in the demand for office space in the markets in ‘which it owns office buildings.- Cash flow from
operations could be reduced if a weakened economy resulted.in lower,occupancy, declining market rental rates;-and lower
rental income for the-Company's office. buildings, which may in turn affect the amount. ot dividends paid by the Company For
the properties owned on December 31,.2002, occupancy was.84 percent. - :
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= Governmental tenants’ (lncludlng trie. State. of ‘Florida and the United States of America), which-accounted'for 24.4
percent of the Company's leased space as of December 31, 2002, may be subject to budget reductions in tifnes of recession
arid'governmental austerity measures. Consequently, thiere can be no assurance that govémmental appropriations forrents
may not be reduced. Additionally, certain of the private-sector tenants, which have contributed to the Company’s teiit
stream may reduce thelr current demands or curtarl therr future need for addrtlonal offrce space

On December 12 2001 the Company began provrdrng property management and leasrng services to AP- Knrght for:75
suburban office buildings and: one’ retail-center. AP-Knight:acquired these properties from the Company: : The Company
agreed-to cantinue to manageand lease these properties for whatit considers to be arm's lefigth property- management ahd
leasing fees. This agreement was terminable by either-party upon 30 days-written-notice.  AP-Knighit LP-terminated this
property management agreement effective December 31, 2002. For the year ended December 31, 2002, management fees
and leasing commissions from AP-Knight totaled approximately $2,680,000. Thiefoss of ‘such revenues will be:partially
offset by a corresponding reduction in the direct cost of management fees. From February 1, 2001 through August 31,2001,
thet Company provided:property: management services for'55 commércial office propertles owned by Koala Durrng thls
penod the Company eamed fees ot $3 499 OOO tor the management ot these propertles P

Durlng 2000 the Company reached an agreement wrth Crocker Realty Trust (“CFtT”) to provnde asset management
'serwces forthie 6. 1-milliori squiare foot portfolio of CRT of which-Mr. Thomias'J. Crocker is the Chairman 6f.the Board -and
Chief Executive’ Offlcerownlng 2.8 percent of the outstanding CRT shares; Mr. Robiért E. Onisko'is the Treasurerand Chiiéf
Financial Officér:owning 0:2 percentof the-outstanding sharés and Apollo isa principal shareholdér owning-49 percent ofthe
outstanding' CRT: 'shafes.- The Company is'paid-a fee for thése services based: upon'the value-of CRT's assets: ' The
agreement is terminable by either party upon 90 days written notice. The terms of this-agréement were approvéd by-a
committee of the Company’s Board of Directors whose members were not affiliated with CRT, and who determined that such
terms Were'sifriilar t6 those that could be dbtained from-an unaffiliated:third party. During'2002 and 2001, the Company
earmned fees 0f:$603,000 and-$452;000, respectively, nder this agreement. Currently, the Company prowdes asset
management servrces tor the remalnlng 4. 6 m|ll|on square teet owned by CRT

lnvestmg Actlvmes At December 31 2002 substantlally all ot the Companys rnvested assets were'in’ oﬁrce .
buildings and land. Improvements to the Company's existing properties have been financed principally through internal
operations. Durrng 2002, the Company's expenditures-for improvements to existing’ properties decreasedby: approxlmately
$1.4-nillion from the- -prior-year; pnmanly dué'to decredsesiin. expendittifes for tenarit: improvements. “This- decreasé'i in
expendrtures for teriant improvéments was primarily due-to {r) the 2001 Property Sale and (n) the lower leasrng act|V|ty "6t
-‘second generatlon space dunng 2002 compared to 2001 B e AR o

LS A R ‘ Coh

Dunng January 2002 the Company acqunred all of the femaining llmlted partnershlp units in: Koger Vanguard Partners
L P “aDelaware limited partnershlp for approxmately $16 5 m|Il|on~ These partnershlp unrts were convertlble rnto 999; 71’0
shares of the Company s common stock : : SRR A R §

On January 31 2002 the Company acquured Three Ravmra Dnve an: 805 000 suburban square- toot offrce burldlng
located in® Atlarita, ‘Georgia; for-‘approximatély $125.0 million and othet: transaction “costsi* The Corfipany allocated
approximately $7.0 million and $118.3 million of the net purchase price to the value of the acquired land and building,
respectively. Asof Décember 31; 2002, approxtmately 63% of the property’s rentable space was leased The Company
expects to tease most of the property S vacant space over the next three years RN &

v #0n Decemb‘er 6, 2002 the’ Company acquued The Lakes on: Post Oak an 1 2 mlllron $quare loot suburban three
office building complex-lecated in ‘Houston;-Texas, for: approxrmately $101.5 millionand othér tfansaction-costs. *The
Gompany allocated approximately $12.4.million-and $90.7 million of th& net purchase price:to the value of the acquiredland
and building; respectively. As of Décember 31, 2002; approximately 78% of the property’s: rentable space was leased The
Company expects to lease most of the properties’ vacant space over the next three years. : SR
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- The Company-had no development activity in:2002.: During.2001, the:Company completed the development of two
buildings, which contain 180,900.gross square feet.. During-2000, the Company completed the development of six buildings,”
‘which contain 579,200 gross square feet. During 1999,the Company.completed the development of six buildings, which

contain. 630,400-gross square feet. At December 31 2002 the Company owned 10 ot these 14 butldtngs contarnrng
983,900 gross square feet. T S ST SRR - S e

On December 12, 2001, the Company sold 75 suburban office buildings, one retail center and 3.4 acres of unimproved
land for approximately $199,587,000,-net of selling costs, and.5;733,772 shares of the.Company’s common:stock (which
were valued-at approximately $96,327,000).: These properties.contained. more. thar:3:9 miillion. rentable square feet and
were located in Austin and San.Artonio, Texas; Charlotte:and Greensboro, North Carolina; Greenville, South Carolina;and.
Birmingham, Alabama. These properties were sold to AP- -Knight, ani affiliate of Apollo:;:A former director of the Company is -
the partner responsible for investments at Apollo. The transaction was negotiated by a Special Committee of the Board of
Directors composed of directors who had ri6 affiliation with Apollo. In-ordér to insurethatthe térms'of thestransaction were
equal to, or better than, a similar transaction'with-an unrelated third party, the:Companyinitiated a marketing period throligh-
its financial advisor during which unrelated bidders were asked to submit competing offers to purchase these properties.
Prior to thé closing of the sale, the Company didot receive any suttrcrently attractive'alternative offers tor these properttes
It ‘conifection with this transaction, Morgan Stanley &Co. Incorporated acted ds finariciat advrsor and provtded an oprnton 16
the Specral Commtttee of the Board ot Dlrectors whrch oprnron stated that the consrderatron recetved by-the Company fromf

On June 1,2000, the: Company soldthe Tulsa Center (contarnrng 476,400 miulfi tenant usable square féstand 10 acres:
of undeveloped land) for approxrmately §28 841 OOO net ot selllng costs The Company SOld approxrmately 5.6 acres of:

August 11,-2000, the Company soId the B Paso Center (contatntng 315 600 Fhulti-tenant” usable square feet) for
approximately-$20,075,000, net'of selling costs. On’ Augiist 31, 1999, thé Company sold the Jacksonville’ Céntral Centef
(containing 666,000 multi-tenant usable square feet and 1.4 acres of undeveloped land) and theé Charlotte°East Centér
(contalnrng 468 900 multi- tenant usable square feet and 3 9 acres of undeveloped Iand) for approxrmately $68 761 000 net

buildings and land‘or to refirance debt. The: Company has a $1 00'million secured revolvrng credit facrlrty provrded by Fleetf
Bank, of which $26 million and $0 were outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001-respéctively:"- o

the Company’s common ‘stock (the “Shares ): The Company repurchased 54 OOO‘Shaﬁres'tor approxrmately $852, 000 durtngi
1999. During 2000, the Board approved the repurchase of up to 2.65 million Shares and the Company repurchased
1,209,980 Shares for approxrmat_ely“$20 4 million’ fora remaining balance of approxrmately 1:44'million Shares approved.

The Company did not repurchase" any'Shares dunn“g 2001 Dunng 2002 the Company repurchased 32 800 Shares for f
approxnmately $503 000 S |

. During December 2001, the Company repard the $90 million outstandrng balance under the secured revolving credit
facmty provided by First Union National Bank of Florida. This credit facility matured during December 2001. On December
28, 2001, the Company closed ori'a’new $125 ‘million secured revolvrng credtt tactltty provrded by Fleet Bank The.
commitment on this facility was subsequently reduced to $1 00 million'in’ December 2002. This facrlrty provrdes tor monthlyf
interest payments requrres the Company to malntarn certarn flnan0|al ratlos and matures |n December 2004 ;
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. During the fourth quarter 2002, Koger acquired The:L:akes on:Post Oak. The funds required for:this:acquisition were
drawn from a $77 million mortgage secured by the property.as well'as draws onthe Company's revolving credit facility. The
non-recourse debt expires on December 9, 2004 and:bears interest at LIBOR plus 287 basis points with'a maximuminterest
rate of 8.32% for the first two years. Three consecutive onetyear extensions, with 0.25%in‘extension fees’in the second and-
third years, are available at the Company’s option. These extensions are contingent on the Company’s compliance with
certain covenants.

~ - During the fourth quarter 2002, Koger secured an"$85 million:non-recourse loan from Metropolitan Life Insurance
Company collateralized by its. Three Ravinia Drive propertyin Atlanta, Georgia.. This.foan has a five-year term expiring-on
January 1,2008 with a fixed interest rate of 5.26%. Kogerused the- proceeds from thls Ioan to pay downa. substantral portronf
of the exrstlng balance on its: secured revolvrng credlt facrllty B T : i '
Concurrently, Koger amended rts secured revolvmg credrt facrllty to Iower the commrtment amount to $t OO mrllron from;
$125 million and. modmed certain debt covenant definitions: and other requrrements :

Loan matuntres and normal amortrzatlon of mortgages and loans payable durrng 2003 are expected to totalj
approxrmately $12 9 million, ln order 10, generate funds suffrcrent to make prtncrpal payments in respect of mdebtedness of:
the-Company. over the long term as well as.necessary. caprtal and tenant acquisition expenditures, the Company wrll be_
required to successfully refinance its indebtedness or procure additional equity capital. However, there can be no.assurance
that any such refinancing or equity financing will be achieved or will generate adequate funds on a timely basis for these
purposes. If.additional funds are raised by issuing equity securities, further dilution to existing shareholders may. result.
Unfavorable conditions in the frnancral markets; the degree ot Ieverage of the Company and various other factors may limit.
the ability of the. Company to successfully undertake any such frnancrngs and no assurance can be given as-to the,
avarlabrllty of alternatlve sources of funds. The Company has filed shelf regrstratron statements wrth respect tothe issuance
ofupto $300 million of its common and/or preferred. stock. The Company has issued $91 6 mI“lOl‘t of its.common stock;
under such reglstratron statements . : ; "

In addition, in the event the Cornpany is unable to generate sufficient funds both to meet principal payments in-respect
of its indebtedness and to satisfy distribution requirements of 90 percent of annual REIT taxable income to its shareholders,
the Company may be unable to qualify.as a REIT. In such.an event, (i).the.Company willincur federal income taxes and
perhaps penaltles (ii) if the Company is then paying drvrdends it may be required to decrease any drvrdend payments toits,
shareholders, and. (|||) the market prlce of the Companys common stock may decrease The. Company would also be;;
prohrbtted from requalrfylng as.a REIT for five years. . S -

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT. RELEVANT TO FORWARD-LOOKING. INFORMATION FOR.PURPOSE OF “SAFE
HARBOR” PROVlSIONS OF THE PRIVATE SECURlTlES LlTIGATION REFORM ACT OF. 1995

The anate Secuntres Lrtrgatron Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act” ) provrdes a safe harbor” forfon/vard Iookrng statements
fo encourage compames to provide prospectrve rntormatton abouttheir. busrnesses wrthout tear of lrtrgatron so long as those
statements are identified as forward-looking and are accompanied by meanrngful cautionary statements |dentrfyrng important
factors that could cause actual resuits to differ materially from those projected in such statements. The Company desires to
take advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions: of the Act. . o :

Thrs Annual Report on Form 10 K contarns forward- lookrng statements together Wrth related data and prolectrons
about the Company's. prolected frnancral results and its future. plans and strategres However, actual results and needs ot'_
the Company may vary matenally from forward- -looking statements and projections made from trme to time by the Company.
on the basis of management's then-current expectations. The business in which the Company is engaged involves changing
and competitive markets and a high degree of risk, and there can be no assurance those forward-looking statements and
projections will prove accurate. Accordingly, the Company hereby identifies the following important factors, which could
cause the Company’s actual performance and financial results to differ materially from any resuits, which might be projected,
forecast, estimated or budgeted by the Company.
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Real Estate Financing Risks

Existing Debt. The Company is subject to risks normally-associated with debt financing; including (a) the risk that the
Company's cash flow will be insufficient to meet required payments of principal and interest, (b) the risk that the existing debt
in respect of the Company's properties (which in substantially all cases will not have been fully amortized at maturity) will not
be able to be refinanced and (c) the risk that the terms of any refinancing of any existing debt will not be as favorable as the
terms of such existing debt. The Company currently has outstanding debt of approximately $431.7 million; all of which is
secured by the Company's properties. Approximately $249.5 million of such debt will mature by 2007. The $100 million
secured revolving credit facility ($26.0 million of which had been borrowed at December 31, 2002) matures in-Deceinbér
2004. If principal payments due at maturity cannot be refinanced, extended or paid with proceeds of other capital
transactions, such as new equity capital; the Company expects that its cash. flow will not be sufficient to repay-ali‘such
maturing debt. Furthermore; if prevailing interest rates or other factors at the time of refinancing (such as the reluctarice-of
lenders to make commercial réal estate loans) result in higher interest rates upon refinancing than the interest rates onthe
existing debt; the interest expense relating to such refinanced debt would increase, which would-adversely affect the’
Company's cash-flow and the amount of distributions th&"Cémpany wolild be able to make to its shareholders. If the-
Company has mortgaged a property to secure payment of debt and the Company is unable to meet the mortgage payments;
then the mortgagee may foreclose upon, or otherwise take control of, such proper’ty, witha consequent loss of mcome and
asset value to the Company.

Risk of Rising Interest Rates and Variable Rate Debt. The Company currently has a $100 million secured reveivirig
credit facility and term loans with variable interest rates. The Company may incur additional variable rate debt in the future.
Increases in interest rates on such debt could increase the Company’s interest expense which would adversely affect the
Company s cash flow and its ablllty to pay dividends to its shareho[ders - : - -

Existing Leverage; No Limltation-on Debt. As of December 31, 2002, the debt to totél market capitalizatior ratio of the-
Company was approximately 57 ‘percent. The Company's policy -regarding this ratio {i.e.; total-consolidated debt as-a
percentage of the sum of the market value of issued and outstanding capital stock plus total consolidated debt) is not subject
to any-limitation in the organizational documents of the Company." Accordingly, the Board of Directors could-establish
policies which would increase the Company's debt to total market capitalization ratio subject to any existing debt covenants:
If this action were taken, the Company could become more highly leveraged; resulting in an increase in debt service that (a)
could adversely affect the-Company's cash flow and, consequently; the amount of cash available for distribution to
shareholders and (b) could increase the risk of default on the Company's debt.

For purposes of establishing and evaluating its debt policy, the Company measures its leverage by reference to the
total market capitalization of the Company rather than by reference to the book value of its assets. The Company has used
total market capitalization becauseiit believes that the book valiie of its assets (which to'alarge extent is comprised of the
depreciated value of real property, the Company's primary tangible asset) does not accurately reflect its ability to borrow-and-
to meet debt service requirements. The market capitalization of the Company, however, is more variable than book value,
and does not necessarily reflect the fair market value of the underlying assets of the Company at all times. The Company
also considers factors'other than its market capitalization in making decisions regarding the-incurténce-of indebtedriess,
such as the purchase price of properties to be acquired with debt financing, the estimated market value ofits properties upon
refinancing and the ability of pamcular properties, and the Company as a. whole to generate cash flow to cover expected
debt servnce

Geographic Concentration

The Company's revenues and the value of its properties may be affected by a number of factors, including the regional
and local economic climates of the metropolitan areas in which the Company's Office Projects are-located (which may be
adversely impacted by business layoffs or downsizing, industry slowdowns, changing demographics and other factors) and
regional and local real estate conditions in such areas (including oversupply of, or reduced demand for, office and other
competing commercial properties). Al of the Company's Office Projects are located in the southeastern United States and
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Houston, Texas. There is also the risk of over building in certain sub-markets located in markets which the Company
currently serves. While the Company has generally avoided acquiring or developing property in these sub-markets such
over built conditions may occur in sub-markets where the Company currently owns properties. The Company’s performance
and its ability to pay dividends to its shareholders are, therefore, dependent on economic conditions in these markets. The
Company's historical growth has occurred during:periods when the economy in the southeastern United States has.out-
performed the national economy. There can be no assurance as to the continued growth of the economy in the:
southeastern United States and Houston, Texas or the future growth rate of the Company ’

Renewal of Leases and Relettlng of Space :

The Company is subject to the rrsks that upon expiration of Ieases for space located in rts buntdtngs (a ) such Ieases may
notzbe renewed, (b). such space may-not be:relet or (c) the terms of renewal or refetting (taking into-account the cost of
required renovations) may be less favorable than current lease terms.. Leases on a total of 24.4 percent and 12.1 percent.of-
the total rentable square feet leased in the Company's buildings will expire in. 2003 and 2004, respectively. If the Company
is unable to promptly relet, or renew the leases for, all or a-substantial portion of the space located in its buildings, or ifthe
rental rates upon such renewal or reletting are significantly lower than expected rental rates, or if the Company's reserves for
these purposes prove inadequate, the Company's cash flow and its ability-to make expected-dividends toiits shareholders;
may be adversely affected. : : :

Leases with State of Florida

At December 31, 2002 the Company had 43 Ieases with various departments and agencres of the State ot Flonda
which totaled approximately 688,000 rentable square feet. The majority of these leases:are for space-in the Company’s’
Office Projects located in Tallahassee, Florida. These leases have provisions for early termination for various reasons,
including lack of budget-appropriations.- During times of recession and government austerity. measures, the State of Florida
may be subject to budget reductions and may decide to terminate certain of its.leases prior.to the contractual.lease
expiration date. In addition, these leases provide the State of Florida with the right to terminate, without penalty, prior to the
contractual lease expiration date in the event a State owned building becomes available for occupancy upon giving-six .
months advance written notice to the.Company. -During 2002, the State of Florida announced its intention to eliminate its
Department of Labor, which had.a direct impact on the Company’s property in Tallahassee. The Company is currently
evaluating the long-term impact of this reorganlzatlon and is in negotiations with other state departments to- reasmgn the
vacated space. : HU »

Real Estate Investment Risks

General Risks. Real property investments are subject to varying degrees of risk. The yields available from equity
investments in real estate depend in. large part on the -amount .of income generated and expenses -incurred.. If the
Company's properties do not generate revenues sufficient to meet operating expenses, including current levels of debt
service, tenant improvements, leasing commissions and other capital expenditures, the Company may have: to borrow
additional amounts to cover fixed costs and the Company's cash flow and its ability to pay dividends to its shareholders will
be adversely affected..The Company must obtain external financing to meet future debt-maturities. -

The Companys net revenues and the value of its properties may be adversely affected by a number. of factors
including the national, regional and local economic climates; regional and local real estate conditions; the perceptions of
prospective tenants as to the attractiveness of the property; the ability of the Company to provide adequate management,.
maintenance and insurance; and increased operating costs (including real estate taxes and utilities). In addition, real estate
values and income from properties are also affected by such factors as apphcable laws, including tax laws, interest rate
levels and the availability of tlnancmg : :
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lliquidity of Real Estate: Equity real estate investments are relatively illiquid.- Such illiquidity will tend to limit the -
abrhty of the Company to vary.its portfolto promptly in response to changes in economic or other conditions.

Competmon Numerous offrce buildings compete wrth the Company S Oﬁrce Pro;ects in attractrng tenants to lease
space. Some of these competing buildings are newer, better located or better capitalized than some of the Company's
buildings. The Company believes that major national or regional commercial property developers will continue to seek
development opportunities in the southeastern and southwestern United States. These developers may have greater
financial resources than the Company. The number of competitive commercial properties in a particular area could have a
material adverse affect onthe Company's ability to lease space in-its Office Proyects or at newty developed or acquired
properties or on the amount of rents charged \

.Changes in Laws.‘ Because increases in mcome, service or transfer taxes are generally not passed through to tenants
under leases, such increases may. adversely affect the Company's cash-flow and its ability to pay dividends to its
shareholders. The Company's properties are also subject to various federal, state and local regulatory requirements, such
as requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”) and state and local fire and life safety requirements.
Failure to comply with these requirements could result in the imposition of fines by governmental authorities or awards of
damages to private litigants: The Company believes that its properties are currently in substantial compliance with all such
regulatory requirements. However, there can be no assurance that these requirements will not be changed or that new
requirements will not be imposed which would require significant unanticipated expenditures by the Company and could
have an adverse affect on the Company's cash flow and dividends paid. - :

.- .. Uninsured Loss. The Company presently carries comprehensive liability, fire, and flood (where appropriate), extended
coverage and rental loss insurance with respect to its properties, with policy specifications and.insured limits customary for
similar properties. . There are, however, certain types of losses (such as from-wars or certain acts of terrorism, including
nuclear, chemical, and biological attacks) that may be either uninsurable or not economically insurable. Should an uninsured
loss:ora loss exceeding:policy limits occur, the Company could lose both its capital invested in, and anticipated profrts from,
one:or more of its propertles R '

= Bankruptcy and Financial Condition of Tenants. At any.time, a tenant of the Company's buildings may seek:the
protection of the bankruptcy laws,. which could result in the rejection and termination of such tenant's lease and thereby
cause a reduction in the cash flow available for distribution by the Company: No assurance can be given that tenants will not
file for bankruptcy protection in the future or, if any tenants file, that they will affirm their leases and continue to make rental
payments in a timely manner. In addition, a tenant from time to time may experience a downturn in its business which may
weaken its financial condition and result in its failure to make rental payments when due. If a tenant's lease is not affirmed
following bankruptcy or if a tenant sfinancial condition weakens, the Company s:income may be adversely affected: -

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance. Under the ADA all publlc accommodatrons and commercial facrlmes
are required to meet certain federal requirements relating to access and use by disabled persons. These requirements
became effective in 1992. Compliance with the requirements of the ADA could require removal of access barriers and non-
compliance could result in imposition of fines by the U.S. Government or an award of damages to private litigants. Although
the Company believes that its properties are substantially in compliance with these requirements, the Company may incur
additional costs to comply with the ADA. Although the Company believes that such costs will not have a material adverse
affect on the Company, if required changes involve a greater expenditure than the Company currently anticipates, the
Company s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders cou|d be adversely affected.

Risks Involved in Property Ownershlp Through Partnershrp and Joint Ventures Although the Company owns fee
simple interests in-all of its properties, in the future the Company could; if then permitted by the covenants in its loan
agreements and its financial position, participate with other entities in property-ownership through partnerships or joint
ventures. Parinership or joint venture investments may, under certain circumstances, involve risks not otherwise presentin
property ownership, including the possibility that (a) the Company's partners or co-ventures might become bankrupt, (b) such
partners or co-ventures might at any time have economic or other business interests or goals which are inconsistent with the
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business interests or goals of the Company, and (c) such partners or co-ventures may be in a position to take action contrary
to the instructions or the requests of the-:Company or contrary to the Company's policies or objectives, including the
Company's policy to maintain its qualification as a REIT. The Company will, however, seek to maintain sufficient control of
such participants or joint ventures to permit the Company's business objectives to be achieved. There'is no limitation under
the Company's organlzattonal documents as to the amount of available funds that may be mvested in partnerships or joint-
ventures. : ‘

Impact of Inflation. The Company may experience increases in its expenses, including debt service, as a result of
inflation. The Company’s exposure to inflationary cost increases in property level expenses is reduced by escalation
clauses, which are included in most of its leases. However, market conditions may prevent the Company from escalating
rents. Inflationary pressure may increase operating expenses, including labor and energy costs (and, indirectly, real estate
taxes) above expected levels at a time when it may'not be possible for the Company to increase lease rates to offset such
higher operating expenses. In addition, inflation can have secondary effects upon occupancy rates by decreasmg the
demand for office space in many of the markets in wh|ch the Company operates :

Although lnﬂatl'on has htstoncally often caused increases in the value of income-producing. real estate through higher

rentals, the Company can provnde no assurance that inflation, when and if it occurs, wntl increase the value ofits propertles in
the future. - : : -

Risk of Development, Construction and Acquisition Activities:

Within the constraints of its policy concerning leverage, the Company has and will continue to develop and construct
office buildings, particularly on its undeveloped land. Risks associated with the Company's development and construction
activities, including activities relating to its undeveloped land, may include: abandonment of development opportunities;
construction costs of a property éxceeding original estimates and possibly making the property uneconomical; occupancy
rates and rents at a newly completed property insufficient to make the property profitable; unavaitability-of financing: on
favorable terms for development of a property; and the failure to complete construction and lease-up on schedule, résulting
in increased debt service expense and construction costs. In addition, new development activities, regardless of whether or
notthey are-ultimately successful, typically require a substantial portion of management's time and attention: Development
activities are subject to risks relating to the inability to obtain, or delays in obtaining, all necessary zontng, land- use buudlng,
occupancy and other requ«red governmental permlts and authorizations. ‘

The Company will continue to-acquire office buildings. Acquisitions of offlce buildings entail risks that investments will
fail to perform in accordance with expectations. Estimates of the cost of improvements to bring an acquired building up to
standards established for the market position intended for such building may prove inaccurate. In addition, there are general
investment risks associated with any new real estate investment.

- The Company anticipates that any future developments and acquisitions would be financed through a combination of
internally generated.cash, equity investments and secured or unsecured financing. If new developments are financed
through construction loans, thereis a risk that, upon completion of construction, permanent flnancmg for newly devetoped
properties may not be avallable or may be available onIy on disadvantageous terms. :

Changes in 'Policies Without Shareholder Approval

The investment, financing, borrowing and distribution policies of the Company, as well as its policies with respect to all
other activities, including growth, debt, capitalization and operations, are determined by the Board of Directors. Although the
Board of Directors has no present intention to do so, these policies may be amended o revised at any time and from time to
time at the discretion of the Board of Directors without a vote of the shareholders of the Company. A change in these policies
could adversely affect the financial condition or results of operations of the Company or the market price of the common stock.
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Limitations of REIT Status on Business of Subsidiaries -

Certaln reqUIrements for REIT quallflcation may |n;_ ”e :future llmlt the Company s ablllty to lncrease fee deveiopment
management and leasing-operations conducted,. and,related.-services. offered by the Companys subsidiaries without
jeopardizmg the Companys qualification as;a REITV i R A e ~. o

Adverse Consequences of Fallure to Quallfy as a REIT

The Company believes ithas operated so as to qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code since its inception in
1988. Although management of the Company intends that the-Company.continue to operate so:as to qualify-as a REIT,.no
assurance can be given that the Company will remain qualified as a REIT. Qualification as a REIT involves the application and
satisfaction -of highly technical and complex Code requirements.for which:there are.only limited judicial and administrative
interpretations: Uncertainty in the ‘application of such, Jrequirements; as welkas.cireumstances not entirely within the Company's
control; may.affect the Company's ability to.qualify. as:a:REIT. In-addition;:no-assurance:can be given that legislation, new
regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions will not significantly change the.tax laws.with-respect:to
qualification as a REIT or the federal income tax consequences of such qualification. The Company, however is not aware of
any pending tax legislation that would adversely affect the Company's ability to operate as a REIT. i s it o

Wt -.“’u

Possible Environmental Liabilities;; ...~ «

Under various federal, state and local environmental laws, ordinances and regulations, a current or previous owner or
operator of real estate may be required to:investigate and clean: up.:hazardous.or. foxic substances or:petroleum product
releases at such property and may be held liable to a governmental entity or to third parties for property damage and for
investigation and clean-up costs incurred by such parties in connection with the contamination. Such laws typically impose
clean-up responsibility and liability without regard to whether the owner knew, or caused the presence, of the contaminants,
and-the liability:under such laws has.been-interpreted to-be joint.and, several-unless.the-harm is divisible -and there is a
reasonable basis for allocation.of responsibility. ‘The costs-of investigation, remediation or removal of such;sUbstanoeS'may‘be
substantial, and the presence of such:substances, or the failure to properly remediate the contamination on such property; may
adversely-affect the owner's ability-to-sell or rent such property. or. to-borrow using such property as coflateral. . Any. persom: Who
arranges for the disposal or treatment.of hazardous or toxic substances at a disposal.or treatment: facility-alsomay be liable for
the:costs -of removal -or- remediation of a release of hazardous; or. toxic, substances at such-disposal or freatment facnlity,
whether.or.not such facility is:owned or operated by such-person: -In addition; some environmental laws create:a lien-on the
contaminated site in favor of the government for damages and costs that it incurs in connection with the contamination:: Finally,
the owner of a site may be subject to common law claims by third pames based on damages and costs resultlng from
enwronmental contamlnation emanating from a:site.: RN L : » S

Py e

Cenatn iederal state and Iocai iaws regulations andcordlnances govern the removal encapsuiation or disturbance of
asbestos -containing materials (‘“ACM”) when-such materials are in poor condition or inthe event of construgtion, remodeling,
renovation or demolition:of a:building. -Such laws may.impose liability for release of AGM and'may provide:for third parties-to
seek recovery from owners or operators of real properties for personal injury associated with ACM. In connection with its
ownership and operation of its properties, the Company may be potentially fiable for such costs. All ACM in the Company's
buildings has been found to be in good condition and non-friable, and should not present a risk as long as it continues to be
properly managed.
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=Interest Rate Rtsk It

The Company's environmental assessments of its properties-have fiot revealed:any-environmental liability that thie
Company believes would have a material adverse affect on its business, assets or results of operations taken as a whole,
nor is the Company:aware of ‘any stch:material énvironméntal liability:: Nevertheless; it is possiblé that thé Cormpany's
dssessments do not reveal all envirinmental*liabilities ‘or that'thére-are’material environmental liabilities of whichthe
Company is unaware. Moreover, there can be no assurance that future laws, ordinanices of regulationswill hot impose any -
material environmental liability or the current environmental condition of the Company's properties will not be affected by
tenants, by the condition of land or operations in the vicinity of ‘stich properties ‘(5uch-asithe presence of-unidergrotind

storage tanks) or by thlrd partres unrelated to the Company

: «‘ B

“Ong of the factors that WIII mfluence the’ market price of the Company s common stock in pubhc markets wrll be the

‘ annual dividend: yield on'the:share pricé'reflected by dividetids paid by the* Company “An‘increase in‘marketinterest ratesﬁ
gould-réduce cash available for dlstnbutron bywthe Company to rts sharehotdersand accordrngly, adversely aﬁect the market‘
’«prrce of the t:ommon stock il , S £

—E<v

Additional Informatlon

For additional disclosure of risk factors to which the Company is subject, see the other sectiois® of “Managemént's’

Dlscussmn and AnaIyS|s of Ftnanmal Condltton and Results of Operatlons

1

Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

| The Company currently has'a: $t 00 m|II|on secured revotvmg credit facrhty and term Ioans with vanabte tnterest rates*
The Company may incur additional variable rate debtin the*future to meet its frnanclng needs. Increases in |nterest_rates on’
such:debt could-increase the Company’s -interest expense, which would adversely-affect the Company’s cash:flowand:its:

- ability to pay dividends to-its shareholders.: The Cortipany has not entered int6 any intefest rate hedge-contracts'in orderto
-mitigate thé interest rate risk: with-respect'to the:secured:reévolving credit facility. As’of December-31, 2002, the Company”

had $104.5 million:outstanding undeér loans with variable interést rates. “If the weighted average interést rate on this variable’ -

- rate debt were100 basis- pornts hrgher or Iower annual mterest expense‘would be! |ncreased ordecreased by approxrmately B
-':$1 045 000 R T I C R AR LI RPN TSR : R B

Addltronally, the Company had $327 2 million outstandrng under Ioans wrth ftxed mterest rates as of December 31;
2002 The Company may |ncur addttlonal flxed rate debt in the tuture to meet its frnancmg needs Should market mterest

‘than market rates If the: market interest rate on this flxed rate debt were 100 basis points Iower the Company would forfert
annual rnterest expense savmgs of approxrmately $3 272 OOO as compared to vanable rate debt fmancrng T

-

24



ltem 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 5" 13 i%i i s
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES |

tndependent Auditors’ Report .........................................................................................................

Consolrdated Frnancral Statements o N
. Gonsolidated Ba|ance Sheets:as of December 34, 2002
~and 2001 ....... NTRTRY
Consolrdated Statements ot Operatrons for Each
of the Three Years in the Period Ended
December 31 2002 Bageiii

. -Consolrda’ted Statements ot Changes rn Shareholder ’A
--Equity for, Each of the. Three, Years in- th
Period Ended.December 31, 2002 .;.¢:. i

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Each
-of the Three Years in the Period: Ended oo e AT i Y e T 5
December31 2002...........;, ...... RNy et s ;
e Notes to Censohdated Frnancral Statements fors -
-Each,of;the. Three Years in-the Period-Ended - LR Ewpt e S oo beaingg
DECEMBET 31, 2002 ..ottt e et e e ee e et e eeae b e eaa e s et e b e e sreneeeeeeenee

Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule 1l - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2002...... oo oceceeeeeeeeeeeee e eeee e esnes Vel 46 s

Schedule Hll - Real Estate and Accumulated
Depreciation as of December 31, 2002 .......cccveiiveireeiiceee e seeae e T R R Y AT VTR AR

25



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS"REPORT -

To the Board of Directors and Sharehotders of
Koger-Equity, Inc.
Boca Raton Florida

We have audrted the accompanying consolrdated balance sheets of Koger Eqmty Inc. and subsrdranes (the “Company") as
of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes‘in: ‘8hareholders €quity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the penod ended Decémber 31;2002. Qi audits-also incliided the financial
statement schedules listed in-the Index at-ltem 8. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opmton on these ﬂnancrat statements and
financial statement schedules based on our audits. : : e e ' : ‘

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted-in the United States'of Arherica. Those -
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining;-on*a test basis, evidence: supportrng the*amotints and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessirig'the accountlng pnncrples used and’ 5|gn|ftcant :
estimates made by management, as well-as evaluating the- overall financial-statément presentation:: We'believe that our

audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all taterial respects, the financial positiofi of Koger
Equity, Inc:'and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002.and 2001, and the results of their operaticns and their tash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the

basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in-all nateérial respects the mformatron set forth
therein. ST : o : R

DELOITTE.-& TOUCHE LLP -
Certified Public Accountants

West Palm Beach, Florida .. . . . - -~ . . . LT
February 21, 2003
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KOGER EQUITY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001 -
(In Thousands Except Share Data)

2002 2001
ASSETS
Real estate investments:
Operating properties:
Land _ o , $110,653 $91,919
Buildings ' 783,185 568,285
Furniture and equipment . ' 3,320 3.082 -
Accumulated depreciation - 149,830 (123,999)
Operating properties — net 747,328 539,287
Undeveloped land held for investment 9,995 13,779
Undeveloped land held for sale, net of allowance 3,831 76
Cash and cash equivalents . 4,627 113,370
Restricted cash _ - 13,340 -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible -
accounts of $1,280 and $1,114 12,183 11,574
Cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired, : '
net of accumulated amortization of $683 and $683 595 595
Other assets : - 13,186 11,904
TOTAL ASSETS $805,085 $690,585
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities: .
Mortgages and loans payable : $431,698 $248,683
Accounts payable 3,801 14,962
Accrued real estate taxes payable 147 1,007
Accrued liabilities — other - 13,435 9,206
Dividends payable “ ' _ © 7,458 44,159 -
Advance rents and security deposits ' 5483 5,103
Total Liabilities : 462,017 - 313,120
Minority interest : - ~_ 22,923
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 2 and 10) Co - '
Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 50,000,000 shares .
authorized; issued: none - = - -
Common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares
authorized; issued: 29,826,632 and 29,663,362 shares;
outstanding: 21,294,894 and 21,128,905 shares 208 297
Capital in excess of par vaiue 472,156 469,779
Notes receivable from stock sales to related parties (5,266) (5,066)
Accumulated other comprehensave foss (212) -
Retained earnings 7,813 21,180
Treasury-stock, at cost; 8,531, 738 and 8,534,457 shares (131,721) (131,648)
Total Shareholders' Equity 343,068 354,542
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $805,085 $690.585

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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KOGER EQUITY, INC: AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(In Thousands Except Per Share Data)

2002 2001 . _ 2000

Revenues : o .
Rental and other rental services . $126,404 $165,623 $164,733
Management fees _ 3,347 4080 . __ 1793

Total operating revenues 129,751 169,703 166,526
- Expenses L
Property operations o 46,235 61,608 . 61,868
Depreciation and amortization . 27,908 35099 . 34,244
General and administrative ’ - 11,381 8,412 20,217, -
Direct cost of management fees 3,335 _ 3378 . 898,
Other , 143 189 oA
Total operating expenses 89,002 108,686  _117.444

Operating Income 40,749 61,017  _4908 . ..

Other Income and Expense
Interest 405 - . q . 708
Mortgage and loan interest (25,145) (26,112) (28,157}

Total other income and expense (24,740 (26336) . _(27.454)

Income Before Gain on Sale or Disposition of
Assets, Income Taxes and Minority Interest and R e
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Subsidiary 16,009 35,681 o 21,628

Gain on sale ordisposition of assets - 21 39,189 -~ ' . _ 6,015.

Income Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest and et
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Subsidiary 16,030 74,870 27,643

Income tax provision (benefit) ‘ {413) 684 -(21) -

Income Before Minority Interest and Equity in g L o
Earnings of Unconsolidated Subsidiary 16,443 74,186 - 27,664

Minority interest (20) (1,044) :(1,1586)

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiary S e 81.: - - 645

Net Income $ 16,423 $ 73223 $27.153

Earnings Per Share: . ‘ : . , -
Basic : $ o077 - $§ 276 - § 102
Diluted  + $§ 077 $§ 275 $ 10t -

Weighted Average Shares: . : : :
Basic 21,2 26,517 26,730

Diluted , 21378 . _26610 - _26962

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Sfétehents.
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| KOGER EQUITY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES .
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR.EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD
i ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
(In Thousands) i

2002 2001 2000

Operating Activities o ‘ _ .
" Netincome ’ . $ 16,423 - $ 73,223 $ 27,153
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash !
provided by operating activities: ‘ o
Depreciation and amortization 27,908 35,099 34,244

Amortization of deferred loan costs 1,894 908 889
income from Koger Realty Services, Inc. - (81) {645)
Provision for uncoliectible accounts 445 1,448 721
Minority interest 20 1,044 1,156
Gain on sale or disposition of assets 1) (39,189) (6,015)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued ~ . o
liabilities and other liabilities 2,376 (7,116) (6,096)
Increase in accounts receivable and other assets (2,338) (1.343) (2,765)
Net cash provided by operating activities 46,707 = 63,993 48,642
Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales of assets 81 199,646 49,726
Cash acquired in purchase of assets from KRSI » - : 2,536 -
Increase in restricted cash’ ' (13,340) - =
Dividends received from Koger Realty Services, Inc. - - 431

_Purchase of limited partner interests in KVP (16,465)

Property acquisitions (228,299) - (10)
Building and land construction expend|tures - : (2,012) (16,184)

~Tenant improvements to first generation space . - (1,479) (4,363) (7,133)
‘Tenant improvements to existing properties {5,207) (6,610) (8,362)

- Building improvements - (4,907) (4,899) (4,065)
"Energy management improvements - (201) (252)
Deferred tenant costs. (1,951) "~ (2,338) (3,812) .

Additions to furniture and equipment S (272) _{177) ‘ {402)
* Net cash (used-in) provided by investing activities \ {271.839) 181.581 9,837
Financing Activities
Proceeds from mortgages and loans 250,000 42,500 76,783
Proceeds from saies of common stock ‘ 575" 259 2,189
Proceeds from exercise of stock optlons : 2,233 1,373 ~8,204
(Increase) decrease in notes receivable from related parlles (200) 174 -
Principal payments on mortgages and loans (66,985) {137,104) (85,024)
Dividends paid - N (66,495) _ {(87,537) (37,416)
Distributions paid to minority interest holders © (398) : 11,259) (1,202) -
Treasury stock purchased (503) - {20,434)
Financing costs (1.838) (2.225) __(34).
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities v 116,389 {133:819) ._{56.964)
Net (decrease) increase in.cash and cash equivalents (108,743 = 111,755 = 1615~
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 113,370 1,615 0
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 4627 $113.370 $ 1615

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Realty usrng the. equrty method.:.

- KOGER:EQUITY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES o,
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN.THE PERIOD
ENDED DECEMBER 31 2002

KR SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Organlzatlon Koger Equrty, Inc.. (“KE ) was mcorporated in Florida on June 21, 1988. KE has Six wholly owned

 subsidiaries; which. are. Southeast Properties.Holding Corporation (*Southeast), a Elorida corporation; Koger Real Estate

Services, Inc. (‘KRES”), a Florida corporation; Koger Reatty Services, Inc. (*KBSI"), & Florida corporation; Koger-Vanguard
Partners, L.P. (“KVP”), a Delaware limited partnership; Koger Ravinia, LLC (*KRLLC"), a Delaware limited lrabrlrty company,

.and Koger Post Oak erlted Partnershrp (“KPOLP”) a Delaware limited partnershrp

Prrncrples of Consolrdatlon Fhe consolrdated frnancral statements rnclude the accounts of KE and |ts wholly
owned subsidiaries (the "Company ) All material intercompany transactions and accounts have been elimipated-in

consolrdatron

Reclassrflcatrons Certaln amounts have been reclassrfled to comply wrth current year presentatlon

lnvestment rn Koger Realty Servrces lnc Durlng January 2001 KE organrzed KHSl Merger Inc a Flonda

.acorporatlon as a-wholly owned-taxable subsrdrary Effective February 1, 2001, . Koger Realty Services; Inc. (*Koger
-Realty”), a:Delaware corporation; was merged into this new subsidiary (the “Merger”). Pursuant to the Merger; the common

stock of Koger Realty was repurchased at the formula price set forth in its Articles of incorporation. All of the outstanding
common stock of Koger Realty was owned by officers and employees of Koger Realty, some of whom were also officers of

- KE. Subsequentto the Merger, the name of the new Florida subsidiary was changed to Koger Realty Services, Inc. This

merger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting-resulting in a reduction.in the cost basis of assets of
approximately $143,000. Prior to the Merger the Company accounted for its investment in the preterred stock of Koger

Earnlngs Per Common Share Basrc earnrngs per common share has been computed based on the welghted
average-number of shares of common stock outstanding for each period... Diluted eamings percommon share,| is similar.to
basic earnings per share except that the weighted average number of common shares outstanding is increased toinclude
the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the dilutive common shares had been

- issued. The-treasury stock method is used to.calculate dilutive shares which reduces the gross number of dilutive shares

by the number of .shares purchasable from the proceeds: of the, options assumed-to be: exercised. Following is-a
reconciliation of number of shares (in thousands) used in the computation of basic and-diluted eamings per share.

12002 2001 - _2000

shares outstanding-Basic . ... ... . 21269 26,517 26,730
Effect of dilutive securities:
©woc.Stockoptions. 109 93 232 - .
: vAdJusted common shares:— Drluted e -21.378 26610 - 26962 -
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Statements of Cash Flows. ~Diiring: 2000, the' Company:contributed 15,557 shares of common stock to the
Company's 401(k) Plan. These.shares had a value of ‘approximatély $262,000 based on the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the American Stock Exchange on.December 31, 1999." The Company’s common stock is
currently traded on the New York Stock Exchange:: During 2001, the Company received 86,779 shares of its common
stock as settlement of $1,364,000 of notes receivable from former employees ($1,010,000 of which were Notes Receivable
from Stock Sales). Pursuant to the Merger, the Company acquired/the net assets 6f Koger ‘Realty-in"éxchange for its
preferred stock in Koger Realty. The net assets of Koger Realty acquired consisted of (i) cash in the amount of

$2,535,000; (ii): other-assets- with. a- fair value of $1;016,000 and (jii):liabilities assumed with a fair value'of :3937,000.
During Decémber 2001, the Company acquued 5,733,772-shares-of its common: stock in- con]unctlon wrth the sale of
‘-‘propertles to AP Knlght LP (see Footnote 2. Transactlons wrth Related Partles) : RS

For 2002, 2001 and 2000 total tnterest payments (net of amounts caprtallzed) were $22 949 000 $25 600 000 and
$27,307,000, respecttvely, for the Company. Interest capitalized durlng 2002, 2001 and 2000 totaled $0, $207,000 and
$1:059;000, respectlvely For2002 2001 and 2000 payments forincome taxes totaled $23 OOO $252 OOO and $155 000
respectively. o

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally-atcepted in the United States of America requires the Company to makéeestimates
and assumptlons that affect the reported amounts of assets Iiabilities revenues, and expenses and the dlsclosure of
belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances. :However, actual results could dlffer from the Company s estimates

“under dlfferent assumphons or: condltlons On an ongomg basrs the: Company evaluates’ the reasonableness of lts
estlmates . . P T K . . . i > . o

The Company belleves the followrng cntlcal accountlng pohcres aﬁect the s1gn|f|cant estlmates and assumptlons used
"""ln the preparatlon of |ts consolldated fmanmal statements - 2 :

lnvestments in Real Estate Rentalproperty and lmprovements lncludlng lnterest and- othercosts caprtallzed durlng
construction, are included in real estate investments and are stated at cost. Expenditures for ordinary maintenance and
“repairs: are expensed’to operatlons as they are incurred: -Significant renovations andimprovéments; which improve or
‘extend: the usefillife-of the: assets, “are’ capltallzed Except for amounts attnbuted to land rental property and
~‘|mprovements are deprecrated as descrlbed below - :

"“The Company Tecognizes gains on the sale ol property in accordance wnth SFAS No 66 Revenues from sales of
~property dre recognized-when 4 significant down’ payment is recerved the earnlngs process is complete and the collectton
of anyitemaining-recéivables is réasonably assured. o R SR S

In September 2002, the Company entered.an agreement to sell approximately 14.5 acres of undeveloped land atits
Atlanta Gwinnett property for approxrmately $3.6 million. This sale is contingerit on:thie approval of the Company s board of
directors and on certain zoning revisions and is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2003 -

Additionally, the Company has entered an agreement to sell approximately 7 0 acres of undeveloped land at its
Charlotte Carmel property for approximately-$1.6 million.. This sale is contingent on the approval of the'Corripany’s board
of directors and is expected to close in the second quarter of 2003.

Depreciation and Amortization. The Company computes depreciation on its operating properties using the
straight-line method based on estimated useful lives of three to 40 years. A significant portion of the acquisition cost of
each operating property is allocated to the acquired buildings (usually 85% to 90%). The allocation of the acquisition cost to
buildings and the determination of the useful lives are based on the Company's estimates. If the Company were to allocate
acquisition costs inappropriately to buildings or to incorrectly estimate the useful lives of its operating properties, it may be
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- required'to adjust future depreciationiexpense. . Deferred tenant costs (Ieasrng commissions and tenant relocation costs)
are amortized over the term*of the'relateddeases. '# - “~= =« ¥ = PR

~‘impairment of Long:Lived: Assets:: - The :Company’s: fong-lived-assets ‘include investments.in‘réal estate and
~goodwill*The:.Company assessesiimpairment of long-lived:assets whenever changes orevents indicate that the carrying

valug:may not be recoverable:- The. Company assesses-impairment.of eperating properties based on the operating cash
- flows of the:properties. In performirig.its assessment, the:Company must'make assumptions regarding estimated future
- cash flows and ‘other factors to detefmine the fair value ofithe réspective:assets. -During the year-ended December 31,
22002, no impairment charges were recorded.” If these-estimates ortheir related assumptions change in the future; the
i“Company-maybe'required torecord’ |mparrment charges lmparrment of goodwrll Is eValuated based on prorected cash
" flows’ of underlymg assets S arLE IRy WRLEMERDGEL T 2l 3

Revenue Ftecoantlon Rental income is generally recognrzed over the lives of leases accordrng to.provisions of
the underlyrng lease agreements. Certain leases provide for tenant occupancy during periods for which no rent is due or
‘where-minimum rent payments increase"during the-term of the leéase: For:thiese leases, the Company records rental
income for the tull termeof eachedseon‘d straight-line basis. For2002, 2001 and 2000, the recognition-of rental revenues
- onvastraight-liné<basisfor applicable:leases increased:rental revénues by $2,128;000; $1,470,000 and-$1,897,000,
: respectrvely'fover the amount WhICh would have been recognrzed based upon the contractual provrsrons of these leases.

The Company generates management fees and: Ieasrng ‘commissions:income by provrdrng on- slte property
management and leasing services to a limited number of third party owners. Management fees are generally earned
monthly and are a based on a percentage of the managed properties’ monthly rental and other operating revenues.
‘Leasing commissions areearried when the Company,on‘behalf of the third party.owner, ‘negotiatesor assists in the
‘negotiation of new-ledses, rengwals:and: expansions:of exrstrng Ieases and are generally a percentage of rents to be

‘received under the-initial term. of therespective leases. i 1 Uw i sy i 2

S W e et
“ 1

o [

The management and leasing agreements between the Company and third party owners generally are based on
“annually rénewableterms and may be termiinated in certain cases and for certarn reasons by either party wrth a30 to 90
“day (depending on the teriis 6f the'specific agreement) notice. - 7wkl Trh : P

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts. The Company matntarns allowances for doubtful accounts tor estrmated losses
resulting:from the inabilitysf.its tenants to:make reqiired payments for rents.and other réntal services. JIniassessing the
recoverability of thése receivables; the:Company makes assumptions reégarding the financial conditionof the tenants based
primarily on past payment trends and certain financial information that tenants submit to the Company. lf:-the financial
condition of the Company’s tenants were to deteriorate and result in an impairment of their ability to make payments, the

-Company:may be required toincrease-its allowances:by.recording‘additional bad debt eéxpense: ‘Likewise; should the
~financial-condition of its'tenants improve. and result-in:payments’ or: settlements of prevrously reserved- amounts the
Company may be requrred to record a reductron rn‘bad debt expense S I R 3

ol

Mrnonty lnterest Durrng 1998 KE acqurred a suburban ottrce park in Charlotte North Carolrna tor a purchase price
of $52.3 million. The transaction was structured as a contribution of the property to KVP in exchange for 899,710 limited
partner units valued at $22.95 million. . In connection with this transactior; KV/P assumed $22.2 million of debt and'received
a-contribution ot $7.2 million from KE in exchangeor general partner interests. The limited partner units were entitiedto a
cumulative preferred return; which approximated-the average‘dividend rate on KE's shares.In additiori; the limited partrier
units carried with thiem the right to redeem the units: for common shares of KE on: a one- unrt-for -one-share basrs or, at the
optron ot KE the unrts may be redeemed for cash : 3 Qo0

KE 5 general partner interests rncluded a majonty of the partnershrp S votlng rrghts and theé Ilmlted partners were not
granted any veto or additional control rights. Therefore, KE has reported KVP’s assets, liabilities and ‘operations in its
consolidated financial statements. The limited partnership units and earnings thereon were reported as minority interests.
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.During January 2002, the Company acquired all of the remaining limited parinership units in KVP for. approxrmately
$1 6 5 m|II|on These partnership units were convertible into 999,710 shares: of the.Company’s common stock:. -

~~ Federal Income Taxes. The. Company is qualified and has elected tax-treatment as:a real estate investment trust.
--under the Internal Revenue Code {(a "REIT"). ~A:corporate REIT .is:a: Iegal entlty that holds realestate, and through
- distributions to-shareholders, is permitted to reduce or avoid:the payment of-Federal.income taxes: atthe corporate level.
-To maintain qualification as a REIT, the: Company must distribute to, shareholders at least 90 percent of REIT taxable
income. Tothe extent that the.Company pays.dividends equal to 100 percent of REIT taxable i income; the earnings of the
Companyare taxed at the shareholder-level. 'However, the.use.of net.operating loss:carryforwards, which: may reduce
~REIT taxable income to zero,:are limited for alternative minimum tax:purposes.. Distributed capital gains.on sales of real
estate are not subject to tax; however, undistributed capital gains are taxed as capital gain. Although KRSI is consolidated
with the Company for financial reportlng purposes, this entrty is subject to Federal income tax and files separate Federal
~and- state income tax returns. - : : ; S ; : o

Stock Optlons Statement of Fmanmal Accountrng Standards No 123 “Accounttng for Stock Based Compensatron

requires.expanded disclosures of stock-based compensation arrangements with-employees and encourages (but does not

_require) compensation cost to. be measured based.on the fairvalue of the equity.instrument awarded.. Companies are

_permitted,-however, to.continue to apply-Accounting-Principles. Board. Opinion-No. 25 (*APB :25%); mhich .recognizes

compensation cost based on the intrinsic value of the equity instrument awarded. The Company has continued to apply

- APB-25 toits stock-based compensation awards to employees and: has dlsclosed the: requnred pro torma effect on net
“income:and- eamrngs per share SRS : R RN SR

_ Farr Value of Ftnanmal Instruments The Company beheves that the carrylng amount of |ts frnancual mstruments

_(temporary investments, -accounts .receivable, and accounts payable) is:a reasonable- estimate .of fair value -of these
instruments. Based on a market interest rate of 7.0 percent, the fair value of the Company’s mortgages and loans payable
would be approx1mately $435.6 million at December 31, 2002.

' Cash and Cash Equwalents Cash in excess of da|Iy requrrements is mvested in short-term monetary secuntles
Such temporary cash investments have an original maturity of less-than three months and;are deemed-to be cash
equrvalents for purposes of the consolldated financial statements.

Restrlcted Cash Restncted cash represents amounts contractually and lntemally placed in escrow tor purposes of
v»makrng payments-for. certaln future burldlng rmprovements tenant allowances leasrng commissions, real estate taxes, and
i debt service, S e l - L _ : Ce

Estlmates The preparatlon of ftnanmal statements in contormrty W|th accountrng prrncrples generally accepted inthe
_.-Umted States.of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the-financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses durrng each reportlng penod Actual results could differ from those
estrmates : ~ = , S . o :

New Accountmg Standards On July 20 2001 the FlnanC|al Accountlng Standards Board (the “FASB”) |ssued
Stateme_nt of Financial Accounting: Standards ("SFAS") No. 141, "Business Combinations", and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill
-and-Other Intangible Assets." These Statements make significant changes to the accounting for business combinations,
goodwill; and-intangible assets. -SFAS No. 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interests method of accounting for business
combinations with limited exceptions for combinations initiated prior-to July 1, 2001. .In addition, it further clarifies the
criteria for recognition of intangible assets separately from goodwill. This Statement is effective for business combinations -
- completed after June 30, 2001. The Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 141 has not-had a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements. : : - g :
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SFAS No. 142 discontinues the practice of amortrzrng goodwrll and lndefmrte Irved intangible assets and initiates an
annual review for impairment. Impairment would be examined more frequently if certain indicators are encountered.
Intangible assets with a determinable useful fife will continue to be amortized Gver that period. The amortization provisions
apply to goodwill and intangible assets acqurred after September 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted the Statement effective January 1,2002. SFAS No. 1424lso
requires the separate recognition of intangible assets acquired as part of an asset acquisition, including the value
attributable to leases in place and certain customer relationships. The Company recorded $274,000 of the estimated
value of leases in place as part of its acquisition of Three Ravinia Drive in January 2002. The Company's adoption of
SFAS No. 142 has not had a material impact on its consolidated financial statements The Company is currently
evaluatrng any other rntanglble asset that may have arisen in its acquisition of The Lakes on Post Oak property which'is
not expected to have a material |mpact on the Company s 2002 results from operattons )

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Assét Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143
requires entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period‘in which it is incurred
and requires that the amount recorded as a liability be capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-
lived asset. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability is accreted to the ultimate amount anticipated to be paid, and
is also adjusted for revision to the timing or amount of estimated cash flows. The capitalized cost is depreciated over the
useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the lrabthty, an entity either settles the obhgatron forits recorded amount
orincurs a gain or loss upon : settlement SFAS No 143 is required to be adopted’ for fiscal years begrnnrng afterJune 15,
2002 with earlier applrcatron encouraged. The Company s adoption of SFASNo. 143 has not had a material impact on its
consolrdated financial statements

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Drsposal of Long-Lived Assets.”
This Statement supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accountlng for the Imparrment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Drsposed of.” SFAS No. 144 retains the fundamental provisions ‘of SFAS No. 121 for (a) recognition and
measurement of the |mparrment of long-lived assets to be held and used and (b) measurement of long- -lived assets to be
disposed of by sale. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years begrnmng after December 15, 2001. The Company
adopted the Statement effective January 1, 2002. The Company s adoptron of SFAS No 144 has not had a material
|mpact on its consolidated financial statements

In Aprrl 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” This Statement rescinds SFAS No. 4, ‘Reportmg Gains and Losses
from Extinguishment of Debt.” Under SFAS No. 4, all gains and losses from extrngurshment of débt were requrred to be
aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordrnary item, net of related income tax effect. Under SFAS No. 145,
gains and losses from extinguishment of debt should be classified as extraordinary items only.if they meet the criteria in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30. SFAS No. 145 is effective for fiscal years begrnnmg after May 15, 2002.
The Company s-adoption of SFAS No. 145 has not had a materral tmpact on |ts consohdated fitancial statements

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accountrng for Costs Associated with Exrt or Disposal Activities.” This
Statement applies to costs associated with an exit activity that does not involve an entity newly acquired in a business
combination, an asset retirement obligation covered by SFAS No. 143 orwith a disposal activity covered by SFAS No.
144. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost assocrated with an exit or disposal activity shall be recognized and
measured initially at its fair value in the period in which the liability is incurred provided that such fair value can be
reasonably estimated. An exception applies for certain one-time termination benefits that are incurred over time. The
Company will adopt SFAS No. 146 effective January 1, 2003. This adoptron is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company's financial posrtron or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“ FIN” ) No. 45, “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN No. 45 requires certain guarantees to be recorded at fair
value and also requires significant new disclosures related to guarantees, even when the likelihood of making any
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payments under the Quarantee is remote. FIN No. 45 generally applies to contracts or indemnification agreements that

contingently require the guarantorto make payments to the'guaranteed party based on changes in an underlying variable

that is related to an asset, liability, or an equity security of the’ guaranteed party. FIN No. 45 is effective for guarantees

issued or modified after December 31, 2002. ‘The Company will adopt FIN No. 45 effective January 1, 2003. This
adoption is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

the application of ARB No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements” to certain entities in which equity investors do not have

the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its

In January 2003, the FASB iésued F IN"NQ. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which is infended fo clari'fy

2. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES.

“Three directors WQre elected to the Qompany‘s Board of Directors under the terms of an a'greemént dated October

10, 1996 between the Company and an affiliate of Apollo Real Estate Investment Fundll, L.P. (”Apollo‘,’)_pUrsqant to Whiéh
Apolio purchased thrée million shares of common stock from the Company for $43.5 million ($14.50 per share). Such

defenses for a period of three years, which period ended on October 10, 1999. During December 2001, the Company sold
75 suburban office buildings, one retail center and 3.4 acres of unimproved land to AP-Knight, LP (“AP-Knight"), an affiliate
of Apollo, for_approxim_ate'Iy $206.7 million cash ($199.6 million net'of's'e'lling costs) and Apollo’s 5.73 million shares of the
Company’s common stock. In addition to the above consideration, the Company received a membership interest in an

Apollo subsidiary. This interest will provide the Company with a 20 percent participation in the net cash flow from the

During February 2001, Koger Really Services, Inc., a Delaware lco'rﬁoratioh_(}‘Kogé;r Realty’), was merged into a

wholly owned taxable subsidiary of KE. Prior to the Mergér, KE owned all of the preferred stock of Koger Realty, which
répresented in excess of 95 percent (by value) of the economic benefits of Koger Realty. This preferred stock was
nonvoting stock and not convertible into common stock while held by KE. All of the Outstanding common stock of Koger
Realty had been acquired by officers and employees of Koger Realty, some of whom were also officers of KE. Pursuant to
the Merger, Koger Realty Tfepurchased all outstanding common stock at the formula price set forth in its Articles of
Incorporation. In connection with the Merger, Messrs. Hughes, Teagle, and Stephens were paid $20,555, $15,416 and
$10,277, respectively, to redeem their shares of common stock of Koger Realty in which they had a basis of $19,840,

$14,880 and $9,9.20,. respectively.

During 2000, the Company reached an agreement with Crocker Realjy. Trust (“CRT") to provide asset management
services for the portfolio of CRT, which currently contains 4.6 million rentable square feet. Mr. Grocker is the Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer of CRT and owns 2.8 percent of the outstanding CRT shares. Mr. Onisko is the
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of CRT and owns 0.2 percent of the outstanding CRT shares. In addition, Apolio is a
principal shareholder of CRT owning 49 percent of the outstanding CRT shares. The Company is paid a fee for these
services based upon the value of CRT’s assets. This agreement is terminable by either party upon 90 days written notice.
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Theterms of this agreement were approved by a committee of the Company’s Board of Directors whose members were
not affiliated with CRT The Company earned fees of $603 000 and $452 000 under thrs agreement during 2002 and
2001 respectrvely : : : :

ln conjunction with the Company S plan to repurchase upto 2. 65 mllllon shares of common stock (the “Shares”) the
Board of Directors granted to Mr. Crocker the right to purchase up to 500,000 Shares and to Mr. Onisko, the right to
purchase up to 150,000 Shares. These officers are entitied to make purchases of one Share for every three Shares
purchased by the:Company as part of this plan. The:Shares may:be purchased from the Company at the same time and
for the:same price asthe Company.purchiases Shares:In‘additien, the Company willloan up t675% of the purchase price
for these Shares to Mr.'Crocker'and to Mr. Onisko: These loans will be-collateralized by the Shares purchased. The loan
amounit cannot exceed 75% of the collateral value at any pointin time. Theseloans will bear intérest at 150 basis points
over the applicable LIBOR rate.. Approximately $861,000 of theséfloans are subjectto récourse and the remaining loans
will be without recourse. Accrued interest on these loans is a recourse obligation and any paid interest is not refundable if
the stock is returned in‘settlement of the loans. -In 2000, Mr. Crocker acquired 302,495 Shares and Mr: Onisko-acquired
100, 831 Shares under this plan In 2002 Mr Crocker acquired 17 ,875 Shares and Mr Onisko acquired 1 659 Shares

precedes the Sarbanes Oxley Act.

During 2000, the Company’s’ Board approved a program-to- lend up “to $2.5 million to executive officers and
department heads for the purpose of-exercising options. The loans have aterm of 60 months and bear interest at 150
basis points over the applicable LIBOR rate. ‘There were no loans outstandmg at year-end under this program. Through
December 31, 2002, options have been exercrsed to acquire 185,027 Shares under this program.

3. MORTGAGES AND LOANS PAYABLE

The Company has non-recourse loans with an original amount of $235 million ($215.4 million of which was
outstanding on December 31, 2002) with Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company (“Northwestern”) which are
secured by nine office parks and one freestanding building. These loans are divided into (i) a tranche in'the amount of
$100.5 million with a 10 year maturity and an average interest rate of 8.19 percent, (i) a tranche in the amount of $89.5
million'with a maturlly of 12 years and an ‘interest rate of 8.33 percent; (iii) a tranich&in the-amount of $14.7'million which
matures on January 2, 2007 and an interest rate of 7.1 percent and (iV)-a tranche in the amount of $30.3-million which
matures onJanuary 2, 2009 and an interest rate of 7.1 percent. - Monthly‘payments ‘on this loan inclide” priricipal
amortization based on a25- :year amortization period. ' This indebtedniess: requrres the Company to‘maintain’ certain

financial ratios and is eollateralized by properties with a-carrying valué of approximately’$362.3 million at December 31,
2002. :

““The Company has a $77:million non-tecourse loan ($77.0 million of-which was outstanding on December 31, 2002)
with Column Finaricial, 1n¢. (“Column Financial”) which is secured by the Company’s The Lakéson Post Oak propetty. The
loan bears monthly interest at the LIBOR rate + 2.87% with all principal due on December 9, 2004. Three consecutive
one-year extensions, with 0.25% in extension fees in the second and third years, are available at the Company’s option.
These extensions are contingent on the Company s compliance with céftain covenants. The Company intends to exercise
all-of these extension options. ‘This indebtedness requires the Company to maintain certain financial ratios and is
collateralized by property with a carrying value of approximately $103.1 million at December 31, 2002.

The Company has an $85 million non-r‘ecourse loan ($85.0 million of which was outstanding on December 31, 2002)
with Metropolitan Life which is secured by the Company’s Three Ravinia Drive property. The loan bears monthly interest at
a fixed rate of 5.26% with all principal due on January 1, 2008. This lndebtedness is collateralized by property with a
carrying value of approximately $123.5 million at December 31,2002,

The Company has a $100 million secured revolving credit facility ($26.0 million of which had been borrowed on
December 31, 2002) provided by Fleet Bank. Based onthe Company’s election, the interest rate on this revolving credit
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facility will be either (i) the LIBOR rate plus either.165,190, 215, 237.5 or 250 basis points (depending on the Company's
leverage ratio) or (i) the lender’s prime rate plus either 40, 65, 90, 1.12.5 or. 125:basis points (depending on the Company’s
leverage ratio). Interest payments will be due monthly on this credit facility which has a term of three years. This credit
facility requires the Company to maintain certain financial ratios, which includes a limitation on dividends, and is
collateralized by properties with a carrying value of approxrmately $103.4 million at December 31, 2002. This credit facility
matures in December 2004. .

The Company assumed other non-recourse loans:with outstanding balances of $30.7 million ($28.3 million-of which
was outstanding on December 31, 2002) in conjunction with certain-property-acquisitions. The contractual interest rates on
these loans range from 7.88.percent to 8.2 percent."Amortization with respect to this indebtedness is based on equal
monthly installments based on 25-year-amortization periods. These three loans mature in 2003, 2006 and 2021. This
indebtedness is collateralized by propertres with-a carryrng value of approxrmatety $53.0 million at December 31, 2002.

The Company is in complrance with all of the above referenced debt covenants as of December 31, 2002

- The annual maturities of mortgages and Ioans payabte as of December 31 2002, are summanzed as to||ows

Year Ending Amount
December 31, - -(In thousands)
2003 - - i_~$'12,920' :
2004 . .. .. 108,631
2005 | 6112
2006 23,706
2007 98,098 -
Subsequent Years ' 182,231

Total . §431.698
4. LEASES.. | .

The Company's operations consist principally of owning and leasing. of office space. Most of the leases are for
terms of three to five years.. Generally, the. Company pays all operating expenses, including real estate taxes and
insurance. At December 31, 2002, approximately 99 percent of the Company's annualized rentals were subject to rent
escalations based-on changes in the Consumer Price Index, fixed rental increases or increases in real estate taxes and
certain operating expenses. A substantial number of leases contain options that allow leases. to renew for varying
periods. -

. The Company's.leases are operating leases and expire at various dates through 2020. Minimum future rental
revenues from leases in.effect at December 31 2002, determined without regard to renewal options, are summarized as
follows: . _

Year:Ending , ~ Amount

December 31, ~(in_thousands)
2003 . $124,176 :
2004 90,315
2005 , : 65,169
2006 - _ 47,591
2007 . . 31,117
Subsequent Years : 82,252

Total  $440,620
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~~ The above minimum future rental revenue does not include reimbursements of certain operating expenses that may
be received under provisions of the lease agreements. -Of the total rental revenues recorded by the Company, these
expense reimbursements amounted to $10, 380 000, $10,510,000 and $10,415,000 for the years 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively.

At December 31, 2002, annualized rental revenues total approximately $16,865,000 (12.3 percent) and $12,626,000
(9.2 percent), respectively, for the United States of America and the State of Florida, when all of thenr departments and
agencies whnch lease space in the Company’s buildings are combined.

5. STOCK OPTIONS AND RIGHTS.

1988 Stock Option Plan. The Company's Amended. and Restated 1988 Stock Option Plan (the "1988 Plan")
provided for the granting of options to purchase up to 500,000 shares of its common stock to key employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries. To exercise the option, payment of the option price is required before the option shares are
delivered.. These options expire seven years from the date of grant and are generally exercisable beginning one year from
the-date of the grant at the rate of 20 percent per annum of the shares covered by each option on a cumulative basis,
being fully exercisable five years after the date of grant. In accordance with the terms of the 1988 Plan, additional options
cannot be granted after ten years from the date of adophon of thls plan.

1993 Stock Opt|on Plan. The Companys 1993 Stock Option Plan (the "1993 Plan") provides for the granting, of
options to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of its common stock to key employees of the Company and its affiliates. To
exercise the option, payment of the option price is required before the option shares are delivered. These options expire
ten years from the date of grant and are generally exercisable beginning one year from the date of the grant at the rate of
20 percent per annum of the shares covered by each option on a cumulative basis, being fully exercisable five years after
the date of grant.

1996 Stock Option Plan. The Company’s 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Plan”) provides for the granting of
options to purchase up to 650,000 shares of its common stock to key employees of the Company. To exercise the option,
payment of the option price is required-before the option shares are delivered. These options expire ten years from the
date of grant and are exercisable beginning one year from the date of the grant at the rate of 20 percent per annum of the
shares covered by each optlon ona cumulauve basls belng fully exercisable five years after the date of grant.

1998 Equity and Cash Incentlve Plan The Companys 1998 Equity and Cash Incentive Plan (the “1998 Plan”)
provides for the issuance of up to 2,000,000 shares of its common stock pursuant to the grant of awards under this plan
which may include stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, unrestricted stock, deferred stock and
performance awards (in cash or stock or combsnatlons thereof). Options granted pursuant to the 1998 Plan would expire
ten years from the date of grant. '

Information Concerning Options Granted. ~Substantially all of the options granted have been granted with an
exercise price equal to the market value at the date of grant. If compensation cost for stock option grants had been
determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for 2002, 2001 and 2000 consistent with the method prescribed by
SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net earnings and earnings per share would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts
indicated below:

2002 2001 2000
Net income - As reported $16,423,000  $73,223,000 $27,153,000
- Pro forma $15,139,000 $71,722,000  $24,938,000
Diluted earnings per share - As reported $0.77 $2.75 $1.01
- Pro forma $0.72 $2.70 $0.92
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Under SFAS No' 123, the fair valile of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the binomial option-
pricing model with the tollowrng werghted average assumptlons used for grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000

1993 Plan, 1996 Plan, 1998 Plan and Other
Dividend yield" - EUNEN Sy
- Expected volatility . -
Risk-free interest rates
Expected lives (months)

2002 2001 2000

T . 8.00%

e - 28.02%

e - 6:62% -
- 82

A summary of the status. of fixed stoek option grants as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, and changes durrng

the years endrng on those dates is presented below

- 2000

iy

2002 SRR 2001 SR L

Welghted Welghted. o ‘Weighted

Average Average . _ Average

) Exerclse L vE_xerclse' " Exercise’

_Options Price "~ Options Price ' Options Price

Outstanding - begrnmng of year 2, 517 277 $17.37 2, 883 834 $17 28 2,257,293 $15.97

Granted - S s e o 01,746,000 © - 16.57

Exercised (163 270) 1370 (103 981) 13 21- - (824,707) 11.40

Expired - e . : . - -
Forfeited . Lo (200,00 ) - A7:56 (262,576) 17;9.4. . . .(294,752): .- 1952 .

Outstanding — end.of year o 2154007 - $17.60 - glgmgq - $17.37.. .. 28 4 . 512,28‘

The weighted average fair value of options granted durrng 2000 was $3.15. There were no optrons granted durlng

2002 and 2001.

The foIIowrng tabte summanzes rnformatlon about trxed stock optrons outstandlng at December 31 2002

Exermse

Optlons -
Price Outstandmg
- $ 7.5000 . 13,600 -
o 76250 - . 40533 .
e~ 11.5000 5480 .. .-
15.3750 42,000
15.8750 41,100
16.0625 - . . 1,000,000 - . ..
17.5625.. .. 400,000 ;- -
19.1250 5,000
19.8125 74,294
20.0000 102,000
21.2500 25,000
218750 - 280,000
228125 . 125,000
' . 2,154,007
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o Optrons

Welghted Average o

Exercisable Remaining Life
e . (Months)
- 13600 - - - . 26
40,533 1B
5480 . e 30
42,000 Lo 4T,
17,800 86
- 666,667 86
266,667 . 90
5000 .- - 56
. 74,294 55 ..
78,198 68
25,000 65
280,000 62
125,000 62
1,640,239 76




- Remaining non-exercisable options as of December 31, 2002 become exercnsable as follows

Number

Year of Options
2003 495,968
2004 8,900
2005 8.900
' 513,768

Shareholder Rights Plan. Pursuant to a Shareholder Rights Plan (the "Rights Plan"), on September 30, 1990, the
Board of Directors of the Company declared a dividend of one common stock purchase right (the “Rights”) for each
outstanding share of common stock of the Company. Under the terms of the Rights Plan, the rights which were distributed
tothe shareholders of record on October 11, 1990, trade together with the Company's Shares and are not exercisable until
the occurrence of certain events (none of which have occurred through December 31, 2002), mcludmg acquisition of, or
commencement of a tender offer for, 15 percent or more of the Company's common stock. * In such event, each right
entitles its holder (other than the acquiring person or bidder) to acquire additional shares of the Company's common stock
at a 50 percent discount from the' market price. The rights are redeemable under circumstances as specified in the Rights
Plan. The Rights Plan was ‘amended effective October 10, 1996 for Apollo and its affiliates. See Note 2 for further
discussion of this amendment. Pursuant to an amendment to the Common Stock Rights Agreement dated as of August
17, 2000, the Rights have been extended ten years, through September 30, 2010,

6. STOCK INVESTMENT PLAN.

The Company has a voluntary stock investment plan (the "SIP") which provides for regular purchases of the
Company's Shares by all employees and directors. The SIP provides for monthly payroll and directors' fees deductions up
to $1,700 per month with the Company making monthly contributions for the account of each participant as follows: (i) 25
percent of amounts up to $50; (i) 20 percent of amounts between $50 and $100; and (iii) 15 percent of amounts between
$100 and $1,700, which amounts are used by an unaffiliated Administrator to purchase Shares from the Company.

The Company has reserved a total of 200,000 Shares for issuance under the SiP. The Company's contribution and
the expenses incurred in administering the SIP totaled approximately $42,300, $37,300 and $50,500 for 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. Through December 31, 2002, 173,145 Shares have been issued under the SIP.

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND COMPENSATION PLANS.

The Company has a 401(k) plan {the “401(k) Plan”) which permits contributions by employees. For 2002 and 2001,
the Company’s Board of Directors approved cash contributions to the 401(k) Plan which totaled $206,000 and $167,000,
respectively.

The Company's Board of Directors adopted a long-term incentive compensation plan for senior officers
effective as of January 1, 2002. The Compensation Committee, comprised of certain members of the Board of
Directors, administers this plan. Under the plan, payments to senior officers are based on the performance of the
Company's common stock over a three-year measurement period and the performance of the Company's common
stock compared to real estate investment trusts in its peer group over a three-year measurement period. Payments
under the plan are dependant on the achievement of certain performance goals and on satisfaction of certain vesting
requirements. During 2002, the Company did not recognize any plan-related compensation expense or make any
plan-related payments.

The Company has a supplemental executive retirement plan (the “SERP”), an unfunded defined benefit plan. The
purpose of the SERP is to facilitate the retirement of select key executive employees by supplementing their benefits under
the Company’s 401(k) Plan. The benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s average base salary during
the last three calendar years of employment. The SERP was curtailed during 2000 and 2002 when as part of the corporate

41



reorganization 13 of the 13 active participants terminated employment with the Company. SERP benefits were settled, via
single cash payments, for 9 of these 13 individuals. ‘Currently, there are five retired participants (all receiving monthly
benefits) and no active participants in the SERP

Net periodic pension cost for the SERP for 2002, 2001 and 2000 was as follows (in thousands):

2002 _2001 2000
Service cost $ - $ 13 $ 47
Interest cost v _ 243 279 433
Amottization of unrecognized prior service cost:  © - " 76 257"
Amortization of unrecogmzed net loss e T - 4
Net periodic benefit cost 243 368 T4
Curtailment - unrecogmzed pnor serwce '
cost acceleration ‘ - 418 - 2,512
Curtailment gain " o - (586)
Termination benefit cost - - - - - 1,128
TotaICost S B $661 - $368 $3,795

Assumptions used in the computation of net periodic’pehsion cost for the SERP were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Discount rate 8.5% 6.5% ’ 7.5%

Rate of increase in salary levels 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
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The tollowrng table prowdes a reconcrllatlon of beneflt obtlgatlons the status of the unfunded SERP and the amounts
included in accrued liabilities- other in the Consolrdated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2002 and 2007 (in thousands) "

_2002 2001
Change in benefit obligation o
Benefit obligation at begtnnrng of year $4,146 $4 061
Servicecost - - e ¢ R < 3
Interestcost =~ - - R S 7 & -y R
Amendments- " A A ] o
* " Actuarial (gainjloss CoE e T (194) T 407
" Benefits paid~ © o : e WA a21) e (614
" Termination benefitcost =~ 7 T Lo nyh g 0
: -Beneflt obllgatron at end of year . co LT e 3774 4146 0
Change in plan assets nt Ty N :
~ Fairvalue of plan assets at begmnrng of year ‘ 0 0
* "Expected return on plan assets B S AR I SR R
Employer contribution O AL o'~} I -} P/
Benefits paid ' (421) (614)
- Fair value of plan assetsat end of year 0 0
* Funded status _ (3,774) (4,146) : -
Unrecognized prior service cost R e 0 857
'Unrecognized actuarial loss 212 407 7
‘Net amount recogntzed “ T $(3562) $(3.082)
' -Amounts recognized in the statement of financial
“position consist of: R S S R
“Accrued benéfit liability $(3,562) '$(3,082) -
‘Additional minimum Irabthty (212) - (577) o
" Intangible asset S @ -0 C BT e
Net amourit recognized , ) - $(3.774) $(3.082) - -

8. DIV!DENDS

Dunng 2002, 2004°and 2000, the Company pald a total of: $1 A0, $1 40 and $t 40 per share of regutar dtthends -
respectively. In-addition-on January 15, 2002, the Company paid a capital gain distribution in the form of a special dividend-
of $1.74 per sharé to shareholders of record on December 28, 2001. For tax purposes, thi§ special dividend was treated‘
as If |t was pald in 2001 For income tax purposes the components ot the leldends pald during 2002 are as follows

Lo Y Rh S SRR g -Unrecaptured Qualrfred
‘ Section 1250 Five Year’
Payment Date Ordinary Income Return of Capital ~ _Gain (25%)  __Gain
February 7, 2002 $0.350 - ST e T
May 2, 2002 0.350 - - -
- August 1,2002 - : 03500 - : - o
November 7, 2002 0.350 - - -
$1.400 - - -

-The Company intends that the quarterly dividend payout in the last quarter of each year will be adjusted to reflect the
distribution of at least 90 percent of the Company's REIT taxable income as required by the Federal income tax laws. The
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Company’s secured revolving credit facility requires the Company to maintain certain financial ratios, which, includes a
limitation on dividends. During November 2002, the Company s.Board of Drrectors declared a quanerly drvrdend of $0 35
per share payable on February 6, 2003, to shareholders of record on December 31, 2002 ‘

9. FEDERAL |NCOME TAXES.

The Company is operated in a manner so as to qualify and has elected tax treatment as a REIT. As a REIT, the
Company is required to distribute to shareholders at least 90 percent of REIT taxable income. For the.three years in the
period ended December 31, 2002, the Company has paid out dividends in amounts at least equal to.its REIT taxable
income. Forthe year ended December 31, 2002, the Company's taxable income prior to the dividends paid deduction was
approximately $21,954,000 (the Company’s 2002 dividends paid deduction was $29,732,000). The: Company's taxable
income prior to the dividends paid deduction for the years ended December 31, 2001-and. 2000 was; approximately
$37,573,000 and $26,393,000, respectively. The difference between net income for financial reporting, purposes and
taxable income results primarily from different methods of accounting for bad debts, depreciable lives related to the
properties owned, advance rents received and net operating loss carryforwards :

The followrng table reconcrles the Company’s net income to REIT taxable income (whrch excludes non- REIT
operations) for the year ended December 31, 2002 (in thousands):.

2002 _ N
.. Estimate .. _2001 . _ 2000
Net Income ‘ $16,423 $73,223 .- .$27,153
Less: Net (income) loss of taxable REIT Subsidiary . 196 - - (651) .0
Net income from REIT operations . 16619 .. 72572:-. 27,153
Add: Book depreciation and amortization 27,908 . 35954 . 35133
Less: Tax depreciation and amortization (23,726) (27,314)  (28,537)
Book/tax difference on gains from capital transactions B T | (2,416). . (1,503)
Other book/tax differences, net 1,153 -(2,178) _(5,853)
Taxable income before adjustments 21,954 - 76,618 . 26,393
Less: Capital-gains distributions 0 (36728 - _- 0
Taxable ordinary income before adjustments 21,954 39,890 - 26,393
Less: Netoperating loss carryforward 0 .. -(2317)y .. .0

Adjusted taxable income subject to 90 percent dividend requirement  $21,954 $37.573  $26.393

The Company’s net operating loss carryforward available to offset REIT taxable income for 2002 is approximately
$2,414,000.. The use of net.operating;loss: carryforwards and other.tax attributes by the Company-is subject to:certain
limitations - rmposed by.Internal- Revenue. Code- Sections 382 and.383. These limitations apply to_both regular and.
alternative minimum-taxes. These net operatrng loss carryforwards. and other tax attributes can'be used invarying.degrees.
to offset REIT taxable:income or tax through i2007. For 2001 and 2000; the Company incurred alternatlve minimum taxes,
of approximately $340,000 and $0, respectively, and recorded a reduction in the provision for alternative minimum taxes of
approximately $340,000 for 2002. KRSl is subject to Federal, state and local income taxes. During 2002, KRSI recorded a
benefit for Federal income tax. of $73,000.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At December 31, 2002, the Company had no material commrtments for the constructron of burldrngs or for
improvements to existing buildings. f o
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¢ 1At December 31, 2002, KE had guaranteed certain notes payable with outstanding balances of $85.0 million and
$77.0 million, respectively, on behalf of KRLLC and KPOLP. KRLLC and KPOLP are wholly owned subsidiaries of KE.

Certain stock option agreements, which granted options to piirchase 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common
stock, contain provisions providing for amounts:to'be’ placed. in ‘escrow equal-to-any extraordinary dividend or other
extraordinary distribution paid to the Company’s shareholders as if the1.4 million:optiéns had been exercised immediately
prior to the declaration of such distribution. The Company:paid-a:special distribution of $1.74 per share on January 15,
2002. The closing price of the Company’s common stock equaled or exceeded $14.3225 on at least 60 trading days
during the period from September 1, 2002 to December 31, 2002. Therefore, $1.74 million and related payroll taxes were
accrued as compensation expense in 2002 related to 1.0 million options. This accrued compensation expense was paid to
certa|n of the Company’s executtve ofﬂcers%o "“March 3, 2003

It e'closrng price.of the Company s common stock equau xceeds $15.8225 on at least 60 trading days during
the’ penod from January 1, 2003 to June 30, 2003, $696 000 will be payable in September 2003 related to the remaining
400,000 options. As of December 31, 2002, $348,000 and related payroll taxes were accrued as compensation expense
related to the 400 OOO optlons

11 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in one business segment, real estate. The Company’s primary business is the ownership;
development, and opgration of income-producing.office properties. :Management operates eachiproperty:as an individual
operatmg segment_ and has aggregated these operatlng segments into a single segmentforfinancial reporting purpeses

due to the fact that all of the individual operating segments have similar economic characteristics. All of the Company S
operatrons are located in the Southeastem Unrted States and Houston Texas.

PR

12 lNTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (U__AUDITED)

Selected quarterly;information:for the-two- years in: the period: ended December 31 2002 is presented below (

thousands except per share amounts):  Fusbyer noge o0 soegealing o S R
Total Total Diluted
Rental Operating Net Earnings
Quarters Ended Revenues Revenues Income Per Share
March 31, 2001 $41,591 $42,685 $ 8,625 $ 32
June 30, 2001 41,628 -42,990 8,713 32
September 30, 2001 42,243 43,317 8,006 30
December 31, 2001 (1) 40,161 40,711 47,879 1.86
March 31, 2002 30,595 31,386 5,148 .24
June 30, 2002 31,855 32,818 4,337 20
September 30, 2002 31,836 32,675 4,394 21
December 31, 2002 32,065 32,873 2,541 12

(1) The resuits for the quarter ended December 31, 2001 were affected by a gain on the sale of assets, which
totaled $39,189.
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SCHEDULE It

“o = .o KOGER EQUITY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES -« <+ =
s .-VALUATION:AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS -
L FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
G emton M iae o (In. Thousands) : .

» . Additions - _ e e e
Balance at Chargedto  Chargedto Balance at
"beginning of _costsand  other _ end of
‘ penod expenses _accounts  Deductions - __period

Deéﬁptidn PR S

2002
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 1,114 $ 445
Valuation allowance - land held for sale 7 $ 0

e

2001 - SN - .
AIIowance for uncollectlble accounts gt
AVaIuahon aIIowance Iand held for sale‘f T

$1448
AN $ i) ‘ D

rﬁm
o o

o": 3
o fion
o I~

~J
— p—
L

2000
Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Valuation allowance - land held for sale

4l

P 5 0

n‘“lE B

E

(a) -- Receivable balances which were determined to be:uncolléctible and written-off i |n the apphcable year
(b) Land parcel was sold for which valuation allowance had been recorded. 3

oo
SRR
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ltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DlSAGREEMENTS WlTH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FlNANClAL
DISCLOSURE ' T SR et
None. Gl S
PART Il

ltem 10 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Informatron about drrectors of. the Company who are. not executrve offrcers is contarned in the Companys Proxy
Statement (the “2003-Proxy Statement’) and is incorporated herein by reference. = . <~ =~ ERERTEEYY TEA

The following tabulation lists the executive officers of the Company; théirages and'their.occupations forithe past five
years ‘

Vrctor A Hughes Jr .......... ........ TSNS Charrman ot the Board

Thomas J. Crocker........;..‘.-; ..................... R RN ‘Chief Executive:Officer. and Drrector

Christopher L. Betket.i....iiviviivnmennnn. B ST v -Senior Vice:President: R

Thomas C. BroCkWell..........oeuienicriinricreierree e Senior Vice President

Steven A. ADNEY.....covceviriiriinecneie e SRR X -~ Vice.President, Finance: ... 3707 Yk b s

' Mr.Hughes,age 67, was elected Chairman of the Board on June 21, 1996::-He also served as Chief Executive Officer
from June 21,1996 to February 29, 2000. He held the position. of-Chief Financial Officer of the. Company from March 31 '
1 991 to Apnl 1y 1998 and the posrtlon of Presrdent from August 22 1995 to November 14, 1997 KR ‘

Mr Crocker age 49 became Chiet Executrve Offrcer of the Company on March 1 2000 and was elected to the Board
of Directors of the Company on February 17, 2000. He previously held the position ot Chief Executive Officer of Crocker
Realty Trust, Inc., a private real estate investment trust, from November 1997 to-February 28, 2000, and: Chief Executive
Officer of Crocker & Associate, L.P., a private real estate limited partnership, from July 1996 to November 1897. Mr. Crocker
served as Chairman and Chief Executive-Officer of Crocker Flealty Trust, Inc ,a publrc real estate mvestment trust from July
1, 1995toJune30 1996 LR : : £ S 2

Mr Becker;: age 46 has been Senror Vice Presrdent of the Company since June 19, 2000 and prevrously held the
posrtaon of Senior Vice President of Crocker Realty Trust, Inc., a private real estate investmenit trustfrom November:1997:to
June 2000. -Prior to that he was Senior Vice President of“Crocker &.Associates; L:Py a private. real estate limited
partnership; from July 199610 November 1997. -Mr.:Becker served as Senior Vice President of Grocker Realty!Trust Inc a
public real estate investment trust from July 1, 1995 to June 30, 1996. DR

. Mr. Brockwell, age 39, has been Senior Vice President of the Company since June 19;2000:: He previcusly held the
posrtron ‘of Vrce Prestdent of Crocker Realty Trust, lnc for the frve years pnor to employment wrth the Company :

Mr Abney, age 47 has been Vice Presrdent Finance for Koger Equtty, Ine since November 5, 2001 Prrorzto ]omrng
Koger Mr. Abney was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for'Konovér:& Associates; Inc., -a privately
owned commercial real estate developer, owner and manager located in Farmrngton Connectrcut forthe fouryears pnorto
employment with the Company S P NIRRT : : , »

Sectron 16(a) Beneflcral Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires that the Company’s directors and executive officers file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the New York Stock Exchange initial reports of ownership
and reports of changes in ownership of the Company’s equity securities. Executive officers and directors are required by
regulations of the SEC to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.
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.. -Td the Company's knowlédge, based solefy on review of the copies.of such-reports furnished to:the:Company and
wntten representations that no other reports were required, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002;the Company s
executive officers and directors complied with all Sectron 16( ) f|I|ng requirements.

ltem 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive compensatlon is rncorporated by reference to the sectron headed "Compensatlon of
Executive Officers"in the 2003:Proxy Statement(except for information contained under the headings “Report on Executive
Compensation for 2002 by the Compensation Committee” and“Shareholder Return: Performance Rresentation”):- ..

Item 42. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT . .-\ i o o

The stock ownership of each person known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent (5%)
of its outstanding common stock is incorporated by reference to the section headed "Information About-Koger Equity
Common Stock Ownership” of the:2003 Proxy.Statement. The beneficial ownership of common stock of:all-directors. ofthe
Company is incorporated by reference to the sectron headed "Election of Directors" contained in the 2003: Proxy Statement

item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

. Reference-is:made to-ltem:1. "Business," 2. "Properties,” 7. 'Management's.Discussion and:Analysis of Financial
Condition:and.Results of Operations"and Note 2 "Transactions With Related Parties" to the Notes to Conselidated Financial
Statements contained in‘this Report and:to the heading "Certain Relationships and Transactions" contained:in the 2003
Proxy Statement for rnformatron regardlng certain relatlonshlps and reIated transactlons which |nformat|on is mcorporated
hereln by reference L mio : S G e ,

Item 14 CONTROLSANDPROCEDURES

( ) The Company marntarns drsclosure controls and: procedures that are desrgned toe ensure that mformatron requrred tobe
disclosed in the Company's filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Such information
is accumulated and communicated to.the Company's management, including:its principal executive officer and principal
financial.officer; :as appropriate, to allow timely decisions: regarding required disclosure:“The Company's-management,
including the principal.executive officer and the principal financial officer, recognizes that any set of controls and procedures,
no matter how well desrgned and operated;-can provrde only reasonable assurance -of achrevung the desrred control
objectives. : 2 - T SR

Within.90-days.prior-to the filing date of this annual report on'Form 10-K, thé Company has carried-out an evaluation, under
the supervision and with-the participation of the Company's management, including.the Company's principal executive
officer and the Company's principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on such evaluation, the Company's principal executrve officer and pnncrpal
ftnancral offrcer conctuded that the Company s dlSClOSUI’e controls and procedures are effectrve

(b) There have been no srgnrfrcant changes in the Company s mternal controts orin other factors that could srgmflcantly
affect the internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluatron in connection wrth the preparatlon of thls annual report
on Form 10-K. e ; :

At
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"PARTIV

item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

. See"ltem 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
..and Financial Statement Schedules" for a. list of the financial statements included in this report.

| : i fT,hrra,,cloih's:ollio‘tated’"’s;L'ipp‘lern_ental.'fiheirrr;,i:;_il:fsyt.a'ter]we":r_rvt'is‘oh'ech_r‘Ie's required by Regulation S-X are included on
) . .+ .pages43 through 45 in this Form. ' L . o
(b)

On November ?f,;';2002,,,the Compeny r‘f_iil_e‘d a Form 8K(dated November 5, 2002) ,reporting under Item 9,
~ Regulation FD Disclosure, the announcement of its quarterly and nine months results for the period ended
-, .September 30, 2002, and providing under Item 7, Financial Statements and Exhibits, the Koger Equity, Inc.

Reports on Form 8.K:

., , News Release, dated November 5, 5002, and related Supplemental Information, dated September 30,

" OnNovember 1 42002,theCompanyf|led a 'FormvB-K:(‘de’ted}No\rernber '1"4‘, 2002) reporting underltemn 9,

Regulation FD Disclosure; the announcerent that its Board of Directors had declared a quarterly dividend

-and providing under ltem 7, Financial Statements and Exhibits, the Koger Equity, Inc. News Releasg dated

November.14, 2002.

On November 15, 2002,theCompanyf|led a Form8K(dated November142002) reporting unider ltem 9,
Regulation FD Disclosure, the announcement of the signing of the definitive agreement to purchase three

office buildings known as The Lakes on Post Oak in Houston, Texas and providing under ltem 7, Financial

- _§tegements and Exhibits, the Koger Equity, Inc..News Be[eese dated November 14, 2002. R

L On December1 1, 2002,the Company filed a Form 8-K (dated [ieoember 10, 2002) reporting under ltem 9,

Regulation FD Disclosure, the announcement of the acquisition of three office buildings known as The
.. . Lakes.on Post Oakin Houston, Texas and providing.under Item 7, Financial Statements and Exhibits, the
- Koger Equity, Inc. News Release dated December 10, 2002. ’

" On December 17,2002, the ‘C.omoany filed a Form 8-K (dated December wE;.S»,:_2Q'02) reporting under Item 2,
. Acquisition or Dispasition of Assets, the acquisition of three office buildings known as The Lakes on, Post

o v!. ~Qak in Houston, Texas and providing under ltem 7, Financial Statements and Exhibits, a notice that a

,' . statement of certain. revenues and. expenses and unaudited pro forma financial statements for the

acquisition would be included in an amended filing within 75 days of the date of the acquisition.

“ ?O'nf‘ljeioiembervés,ﬁQdOé,(thé; Comp‘any"filedaavForme-‘K (dété_q December 18, 2002) reporting urider Item 9,

Regulation FD »;Disolosure,,,:'t'he_]éhn‘our\oement, of the closing of an.$85 million mortgage loan on the
Company’s Three Ravinia Drive property in Atlanta, Georgia and. providing under Item 7, Financial

- Statemep_te and Eg;hibi_t__s, the Keger E_quity, Inc. New_s Release dated December 18, 2002.
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(c) The following exhibits are filed as part of this report:
Exhibit o L
Number Description = < 7 e

"1 o Undenwiiting Agreement dated December 12, 1997, between Koger Equity, Inc. and J.P. Morgan
*7 Securities, Inc., Bear Steams and Company, ‘Inc. and BT Alex Brown Incorporated, as
Representatives of the several underwriters. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 of the Form 8-K,

 dated December 12, 1997, filed by the Registrant on December 15, 1997 (File No. 1-9997).

1(a) Underwriting Agreement dated March 24, 1998, between Koger ‘Equity, inc. and Wheat, First
Securities, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 of the Form 8-K, dated March 24, 1998, filed by
the Registrant on March 30, 1998 (File No. 1-9997). I - ‘

2 - . Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 21, 1993 between the Company and Koger
RN TS Properties, Iﬁc.f:lnccrﬁé'ratéd‘by_r‘.e‘fq'rénlcetb’EXhibit"Z_ of Form 10K filed by the Registrant for the
| period ended December 31, 1993 (File No. 1-9997). - o
3(8)" " Aricles of Ameridment and Restatement bf Articles of Incorporation of Koger Equity, Inc., dated May
ST TR 18,2000. Incorporated by reference fo Exhibit-3(a) of the Form 10-Q filed by the Registration for the
quarter ended September 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997). ‘

3(b) . Koger Equity, Inc. By Laws, as Amended and Restated on February 17, 2000. Incorporated by

. TUE e reference to Exhibit 3(b) of the Form 10-Qfiled by-the Registrant for the quarter ended September 30,
S © 2000 (File No. 1-9997). " Tt T Tl

Cafay” T Common Stock Certificate of Kogst Equity Inc. Incorporated'by reference to Exhibit 4(a) of the Form
10-Q filed by the Registrant for the quarter ended June 30, 2001°(File No. 1-9997).

4(b)(1)(A) Koger Equity, Inc. Rights Agreement (the "Rights Agreement") dated as of September 30, 1990

~ " “between the' Company and Wachovia Bank and Trust Company, N.A. as Rights Agent ("Wachovia").

" Incorporated by réference fo Exhibit 1 16 a Registration Statement on Form 8-A, dated October 3,

. 1990 (File No: 1:9997):> "+~ =+ | o
4(b)(1)(B) - First Amendmiént to the'Rights Agreément; dated as of March 22 1993; between the Company and
. First Union National Bank of North Carolina, as Rights Agent ("First Union"), entered into for the
~ purpose of replacing Wachovia' Incorparated by reference to Exhibit 4(b)(4) of the Form 10-Q filed by
. ..o theRegistrant forthe quarter eridéd March 31, 1993 (File No: 1-9997). '~
“4(b)(1)(€) - Second Amendment to the-Rights Agreement; dated as of Decémber 21, 1993, between the
Company and First Union.” Incorporated by téference‘to Exhibit 5t'an Amendment on Form 8-A/A,
dated December 21, 1993, to a Registration Statement of the Registrant on Form 8-A, dated October
73,1990 (FileiNo. 1:9997). © T T T

’A(bf)‘(j-)(b')~~ " Third‘Améndment to Rights Agreement, dated as of October 10, 1996, between Koger Equity, Inc.

“and First Union.* Incorporated by refererice to Exhibit 6 t6 an Amendment on Form 8-A/A, dated
“November 7, 1996, to a Registration Statément of tfie Registrant on Form 8-A, dated October 3, 1990

. (File No. 1-9997).
4)INE) Fourth Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of February 27, 1997, between Koger Equity, Inc.
7% andFirst Union. Incorporated by tefererice 1o Exhibit 8 to an Amendment on Form 8-A/A, dated
‘March 17, 1997, to a Registration Statement of thie Registrant on Form 8-A, dated October 3, 1990
o (FleNotsegr). o
4b)(1)(F)  Fifth Amendment o Rights Agreement, dated as of November 23, 1999, betweenKoger Equity, Inc.
and Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as successor Rights Agent. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 11 to an Amendment on Form 8-A/A, dated November 23, 1999, to a Registration
Statement of the Registrant on Form 8-A, dated October 3, 1990 (File No. 1-9997).
4(b)(1)(G) Sixth Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of August 17, 2000, between Koger Equity, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A., as successor Rights Agent. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4(1) to an Amendment on Form 8-A/A, dated August 17, 2000, to the Registration Statement of the
Registrant on Form 8-A, dated January 28, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).
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Exhibit
Number

A

CAD)R)

- 4b)3) -

mmuuh

102)C) -

~10(a)3)A)

o

~10(a)4) -

10(a)(5).

o

Description

Seventh Amendment to the Rights-Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank

+. Minnesota, N.A.; as successor: Rights Agent. ‘Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(j) to an

Amendment on Form 8-A/A, dated December 21, 2001- (File No. 1-9997). ' .

- Form of Common Stock Purchase Rights Certificate (attached as Exhibit Ato the Rights Agreement).
- Pursuant to the Rights Agreement, printed Commaon Stock-Purchase Rights Certificates will not be

mailed until the Distribution Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement).

© . ‘Surmmary of Common Stock Purchase Rrghts (attached as Exhrbrt B.tothe Rrghts Agreement, Exhrbrt
- AR - |

Koger Equity, Inc. Amended and Restated 1988 Steck Optron PIan Incorporated by reterence to

-~ Exhibit 10(e)(1){A) of. Form 10 Q frIed by the Regrstrant tor the: quarter ended June 30, 1992 (File No.
1:9997). o o

Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Koger Equrty Inc Amended and Restated 1988 Stock

. ... :Option Plan. Incorporated:by reference to Exhibit 10(e)(2)(A) of Form 10 Q filed by the Registrant for
; +« - the'quarter-ended June 30,-1992 (File No. 1-9997). &

Form of Amendmeént to Stock Option:Agreement pursuant to’ Koger Equrty Inc. Amended and

-+ .-Restated 1988 Stock Option Plan..Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(1)(C) of Form: 10-K filed
i+ o-Dy the Registrant for the period ended December 31; 1996 (File No. 1-99897).

Koger Equity, Inc.-1993 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference ‘to Exhrbrt il to Hegrstrant s

- = Proxy Statement dated June 30, 1993:(File No.:1-9997-. :

Form of Stock:Option Agreement ‘pursuant to Koger Equtty Inc 1993 Stock Optron Plan.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(e)(3)(B) of Form 10 K frIed by the Regrstrant for the perlod

- ended December31, 1994 (File No. 1-9997).
- ‘Form of Amendment to Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Koger Equrty Inc. 1993 Stock Optron

Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(2)(C) of Form 10-K frled by the Regrstrant for the

- period énded December 31, 1996 (File No. 1-9997).:
« -Koger Equity, Inc::1996 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhrbrt 10(a )(3)(A) ot Form

10-K filed by the Registrant for the-period ended December 31, 1996 (File No. 1-9997).

‘Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to-Koger Equity, inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan'incorperated
* by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(3)(B) of Form 10 K frIed by the.. Regrstrant for the period ended

December 31, 1996 (File No. 1-9997). -

- Form.of Koger Equity, Inc. Restricted Stock: Award eﬁecttve asof May 1 1999. Incorporated by
- reference to Exhibit 10(a) on Form 10 Q frled by the Regrstrant for the quarter ended June 30, 1999

(File No. 1-9997).
Koger Equity,.Inc. 1998 Equity.and Cash Incentrve Plan, as Amended and Restated Incorporated by

- reference to.Exhibit A to Registrant’s Proxy Statement, dated Aprii 18, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).

Stock Option Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc. and Thomas J. Crocker, dated as of February

17, 2Q00. Incorporated by reference to-Exhibit 10(a)(6) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the

quarter ended-June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).

.Stock Option Agreement between Koger Equity; Inc. and Robert E Onlsko dated as of February 17,

2000. ‘Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b)(6) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the
quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997). ‘ o
Reserved.

~ License Agreement, dated as of JuIy 28, 1995, between Koger Equrty Inc. and Koger Realty

Services, Inc: incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(v) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the
quarter ended June 30, 1995 (File No. 1-3997).

Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, effective as of May 20, 1999.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the quarter ended
June 30, 1999 (File No. 1-9997). '

53



Exhibit
Number Description
10(d)(2) Amendment No. 1 to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan; effective June 21, 1996. Incorporated

- by reference to Exhibit 10(d)(2) of Form 10 K filed by the Regrstrant for the period ended December
31, 1997 (File No. 1-9997)..
10(d)(3) - Amendment No. 2 to-Supplemental Executive Retrrement Plan, effective May 19, 1998. Incorporated
S by reference to Exhibit 10{d){3) of Form:10-K filed by the Regrstrant for the period ended December
31, 1998 (File No. 1-9997).
10(d)(4) Amendment No. 3 to Supplemental Executive: RetrrementPlan eﬁectrve May 19,1998, Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10(d)(4) of the Form 10-K frled by the Regrstrant for the perrod ended
. December 31, 1998 (File No. 1-9997). .
10(e) - 'Form of Indemnification Agresment between Koger Equrty Inc. and |ts Drrectors and certain of its
officers. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10( ) of Form 10 K filed by the Registrant for the year
o ended December 31, 1995 {File No. 1-9997). r
10(f)(1)(A) -~ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc. and Victor A. Hughes,
Jr. effective as of April 1, 1998. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(f)(1) of Form 10-K filed by the
: , - ~Registrant for the period ended December 31, 1998 (File No. 1-9997).
10(((1)(B) " Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc: and James C. Teagle,
effective as of April 1, 1998. Incorporated by reference: to Exhibit 10(f)(2) of Form 10- K filed by the
, - Registrant for the period ended December 31, 1998 (File No..1-9997). -
10(f)(1)(C) Employment Agreement between-Koger Equity, Inc. and:David-B. Hiley, effectrve as of Aprrl 1,1998.
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(f)(3) of. Form 10 K filed- by the Registrant for the period ended
: . “December 31, 1998 (File No. 1-9997).- :
10(H(1)D) Employment Agreement between Koger Equrty, |nc and Thomas J Crocker, effective January 17,
- .- - 2000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(1) of Form 10 Q frled by the Registrant for the
- - quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).- :
10(H(1)(E) Employment Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc. and: Robert E Onisko, effective January 17,
‘ 2000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b)(1) of Form 10- Q filed by the Registrant for the
. quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).
10(f)(2)(A) . -~ Change of Control Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc. and Victor A. Hughes, Jr., effective as of
R May 20, 1999. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(c) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the
quarter ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 1-9997). '
10(H(2)(B) -  Change of Control Agreement between Koger Equity, In¢. and James C Teagle, effective as of May
20, 1999. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(d) of Form 10 Q. frled by the Registrant for the
quarter ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 1-9997).
10(f)(2)(C) - -~ Change of Control Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc. and David B. Hrley, effective as of May 20,
' 1999. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(e) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the quarter
g : ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 1:9997).
10(f)(3)(A) Promissory Note (No Recourse Note), dated as of February 17, 2000, executed by Thomas J.
Crocker as maker in favor of Koger Equity, Inc. as lender. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit:
10(a)(2) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).
10(f)(3)(B) - Promissory Note (25% Recourse Note), dated as:of February 17,2000, executed by Thomas J.
Crocker as maker in favor of Koger Equity, Inc. as lender. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(a)(3) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).
10(f)(3)(C) Stock:Pledge Security Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc. and Thomas J. Crocker, dated as of
February 17, 2000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(4) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant
for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).
10())(3)(D) Stock Purchase and Loan Agreement between Thomas J. Crocker and Koger Equity, Inc., dated as of
= February 17, 2000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(5) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant
for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 {File No. 1-9997).
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Exhibit

Number

10 )A)
10()(4)B)

10(H(4)(C)

10(N)2){A)
10(h)(2)(B)

10(h)(2)(C)

10()2)0)

ome)E

10(h)@)(F)

10(h)(2)(G)

~ Description

Promissory Note (No Recourse Note), dated as of February 17, 2000, executed by Robert E. Onisko
as maker in favor of Koger Equity, Inc. as lender. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b)(2) of
Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).
Promissory Note (25% Recourse Note), dated as of February 17, 2000, executed by Robert E. Onisko
as maker in favor of Koger Equity, Inc. as lender. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b)(3) of
Form 10-Q filed.by the Registrant for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997).

Stock Pledge Security Agreement between Koger Equity, Inc. and Robert E. Onisko, dated as of
February 17, 2000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b)(4) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant
for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-9997). ‘

Stock Purchase and Loan Agreement between Robert E. Onisko and Koger Equity, Inc., dated as of
February 17, 2000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b)(5) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrant
for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1:9997). -

Reserved. '

Loan Application, dated July 29 1996 by Koger Equity, Inc. to The Northwestern Mutual Life
Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(j)(1) on Form 8-K, dated December 16,

1996, filed by the Registrant on March 10, 1997 (File No. 1-9997). .
: . .Master Loan Agreement, made as of December 6, 2001, between Koger Equity, Inc. and The
 Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) on Form

8-K, dated December 6, 2001, filed by the Registrant.on March 21, 2002 (File No. 1-9997).

Koger Equity, Inc. Tranche A Promissory Note, dated December 16, 1996, in the principal amount of
$100,500,000 payable to The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(j)(2)(A) on'Form 8-K, dated December 16, 1996, filed by the Registrant on
March 10, 1997 (File No. 1-9997).

Koger Equity, Inc. Tranche B Promissory Note, dated December 16, 1996, in the principal amount of
$89,500,000 payable to The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10(j)}(2)(B) on Form 8-K, dated December 16 1996, filed by the Regrstrant on March 10,
1997 (File No. 1-9997). - _
Koger Equity, Inc. Tranche C Promissory Note, dated Septemberz 1999, in.the principal amount of
$14,700,000 payable to The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(j)(6) on Form 8-K, dated September 2, 1999, ﬂled by the Registrant on
November 17, 1999 (File No. 1-9997)

Koger Equity, Inc. Tranche D Promissory Note, dated September 2, 1999, in the principal amount of
$30,300,000 payable to The Northwestern Mutual -Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(j)(7)- on Form 8-K, dated September 2, 1999 filed by the Registrant on
November 17, 1999 (File No. 1-9997).

First Amendment of Tranche B Promissory Note, dated August 11, 2000, between Koger Equity, inc.
and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. ‘Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10()(2)(E) of Form 10-Q filed by the Registrantfor the quarter ended September 30, 2000 (Fite No.
1-9997).

Third Amendment to Tranche A Promrssory Note, dated December 6, 2001, between Koger Equity,
inc. and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(b) on Form 8-K, dated December 6, 2001, filed by the Registrant on March 21, 2002 (File No.
1-9997).

Second Amendment to Tranche B Promissory Note, dated December6 2001 between Koger Equity,
Inc. and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(c) on Form 8-K, dated December 6, 2001, filed by the Registrant on March 21, 2002 (File No.
1-9997).
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Exhibit
~ Number

10(h)(3)\(e')-f

. /1'D(h)j(»2).(rt) ~

HOMB)E)

10(MBIC):

= 10(n)(3)) -

OMEE

0REF

. 1(')(h)(3-)(~H)v -

_ Description

.. First Amendment to Tranche C Promissory Note, dated December 6, 2001, between Kager. Equity,
.- ... Inc. and The:Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company: Incorperated by reference to Exhibit
w0 +10(d) on Form 8-K, dated December 8, 2001, filed by the Regrstrant on March 21, 2002 (File No.
S e 0. 1-9997).
10(h)2)(1). . = -+ First Amendment to Tranche D Promrssory Note, dated December 6, 2001, between Koger Equrty,
.. »Inc. andThe Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
«= . 10(e).on Form 8-K, dated December 6, 2001, filed by the Regrstrant on March 21, 2002 {File:No.
St el 1-9997). -
10(h)(3)(A)

Master Lien lnstrument from Koger Equrty, lnc to The Northwestem Mutuat Life Insurance Company,
dated December 16, 1996, (1) with Mortgage and Security Agreement for Duval, Leon, Orange and

- Pinellas Counties, Florida and (2) with Deed of Trust and Security Agreement for Greenville County,

South Carolina, Shelby County, Tennessee and Bexar, El Paso and Travis Counties, Texas.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(j)(3)(A) on Form 8-K, dated December 16, 1996 flled by the

.<'Registrant on March 10, 1997 (File No:1-3997). .
‘Master Lien‘Instrument from Koger Equity, Inc.to The: Northwestem Mutual Life lnsurance Company,

dated September 2, 1999, for Duval, Leon; Orange and Pinellas Counties, Florida, Greenville County,

+ South Carolina, Shelby County; Tennessee, and Bexar, El Paso and:Travis Cournties; Texas.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(j)(8):on. Form 8-K, dated. September 2, 1999, filed by the -

- Registrant on November 17, 1999 (File No: 1:99937). ;
. Leasehold Deed of Trust and Security Agreement, dated September2 1999 between Koger Equity,
- <Inc., and John S. Shoaf, Jr. (*Trustee”), and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company for

Shelby County, Tennessee. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(j)(9) on Form 8-K, dated
September 2, 1999, filed by the Registrant on November 17, 1999 (File:No. 1-9997).

~1DB Deed of Trust and Security Agreement, dated September:2; 1999, between the Industrial
- Development Board of the City of Memphis and County of Shelby, Koger Equity, Inc., and Trustee
. and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company for Shelby:County, Tennessee. Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10(j)(10) on Form 8-K, dated September 2, 1999 trled by the Regrstrant on

- November 17, 1999 (File No. 1-9997).
- Consolidation, Amendment and Restatement of Mortgage and Secunty Agreement and Spreader
: - Agreement, dated December 6, 2001, between Koger Equity, Inc: and-The:Northwestern Mutual Life

Insurance Company, for Orange County, Florida. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(h) on Form

8-K, dated December 6, 2001, filed by the Registrant on March 21, 2002:(File No. 1-9997)..
-Consolidation, Amendment and Restatement of Mortgage and Security Agreement and Spreader
- Agreement, dated December 6, 2001, between Koger Equity, inc:.and The Northwestern Mutual Life

Insurance Company, for Pinellas County, Florida. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(i) on Form

-8-K, dated Decembet 6, 2001, filed by the Registrant on March 21,:2002 (File No. 1-9997)." .-

Consolidation, Amendment and Restatement of Mortgage and Security Agreement and Spreader

- Agreement, dated December 6, 2001, between Koger Equity, Inc. and The Northwestern Mutual Life -

Insurance Company, for Duval County, Florida. Incorporated by referencé to Exhibit 10(j) on Form

- 8-K, dated December 6, 2001, filed by the'Registrant on March 21, 2002 (File No. 1-9997)." .
~.Consolidation, Amendment and Restatement of Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated December
© - 6,2001, between Koger Equity, Inc. and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, for Leon

County, Florida. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(k) on Form 8-K, dated December 6 2001
filed by the Heglstrant on March 21, 2002 (Flle No. 1-9997). :
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110(h)3)(1) - '+ -Consolidation; Amendment ‘and Restatement:'of Deed’ of Tfust and Security Agreement; dated
coheroeLan o December 6, 2001, between Koger Equity, Incand Robert: . Pinstein(“Trustee”), and The
. Northwestern Mutual Life Insirance: Company, for ‘Shelby County, Tennessee. Incorporated by
et s reference to'Exhibit-10(f) on Form: 8 K dated December6 2001 frled by the Reglstrant on'March 21,
LUt T02002 (Filé No. 1-9997). o
C10(hY(3)(J) = ‘Amendment and Restatement of IDB Deed of Trust and Secunty Agreement dated December 6,
T momie w2001, betweén: The Industrial Development Board of the City:of Memphis and County of Shelby,
v Koger Equity, Inc. and Robert J: Pinstein ahd The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, for
Shelby' County, Tennessee! :: Incorporated: by referenceto- Exhibit ' 10(m) on Form 8:K, dated
Ao s D Deggmiber 6, 2001, filed by the Registrant on:March 21, 20021(File No. 1-9997).
L 10(h)(B)(K) - 'Amendmentand Restatement of LeaseholdDeed of Trust and Security Agreement, dated December
anedt o 2062001, betweenKoger Equity, Inc. and-Robert J: Pinstein, ‘and The Northwestern Mutual Life
Insurance Company, for Shelby County; Tennessge:: Iricorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(n) on
“1he e Form B+K, dated-December 6, 2001 filed by the‘Registrant on‘March-21; 2002 (File No.{1-9997).
; «-Mortgage and Sécurity Agreement; datéd December 68,2001, betwegh Koger Equity, Inc. and The
= Northwestern ‘Mutual Life Insurance ‘Company;:for Seminole.'County, Fiorida. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(o) on- Form 8 K dated December 6 2001 frled by the Regrstrant on March 21,
Pl 2002 (File No. 1-9997). L T
10(h)(3)(M)-* - "Deed to Secure Debt-and Security Agreement dated December B, 2001 between Koger Equrty Inc.
o wiee L and The Notthwestern MutualLife Insurance Gornpany, for-DeKalb'County; Gébrgia. Incorporated by
reference to' Exhibit- 10(p) on Form 8 K, dated December 6 2001 frled by the Regrstrant on March 21,
L e 2002°(File No.1-9997).5 S L
“10(h)8)(N) - - Deedto Secure Debt and Securrty Agreement dated December6 2001 between Koger Equrty Inc.
“Eioe oo and The NorthwesternMutuakiLife Instirance Company,for-Gwinnett County, Georgia. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10 (q)on Form 8 K dated December 6 2001 trled by the Regrstrant on March
Gt 21,2002 (File'No. 1-9997). - P
~10(h)(4)(A) - ‘Environmenital Indemnity: Agreement dated December16 1996 between Koger Equrty Inc. and The
ciiow 0 Noithwestern: Mutual Life Insurance ‘Coeimpany and- others:’ lncorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(j)(4) on Form 8- K dated December 16 1996 frled by the Regrstrant on March 10, 1997 (Frle No

1 L

r. LT 1-9997):
10(h)(4)B)- - Envircrimental Indemmty Agreement dated September2 1999 between Koger Equnty Inc and The
wnae e sNorthwestern - Matual Liferinsurance: Companly and others: Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
17106)(12) on'Form 8K, dated September2 1999 frled by the Heglstrant on November 17, 1999 (Frle
e ot o# Now1-9997). coant R
: 1=0(h)'(4)‘(C) 5 - First: Amendment to Envrronmental lndemnrty Agreement dated December6 2001 between Koger

© “Equity, Inc. and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. - Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(f) on Form 8- K dated December 6 2001 trled by the Regrstrant on March 21 2002 (Frle
b Nl 149997y, e
10(h)(4)(D) - - Third Amendment to Envrronmental !ndemnrty Agreement dated December6 2001, between Koger
e i Equity, Inc. and The Nerthwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. - Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(g) on Form 8- K dated December 6 2001 frled by the Regrstrant on March 21 2002 (Frle
+ 2 No. 1-9997). " :

“10(h)(5)(A) -~ Certificate of Borrowercontalned in Ietter dated December16 1996 from KogerEqurty, tnc to The
- - ~Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(j)(5) on Form

8-K, dated December 16, 1996, filed by the Registrant on'March 10, 1997 {File No. 1-9997).
“10(h)(5)(B) - © ' Certificate of Borrower contained in letter; dated September 2, 1999, from Koger Equity, Inc. to The
7+ Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference-to Exhibit 10(j)(13) on Form

- 8-K, dated Septeriber 2, 1999, filed by the Registrant on November 17, 1999 (File No. 1-9997).
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_Number  Description

+:10(h)(E)NC) ;. , Certification of Borrower, dated. December 3, 2001, from Koger Equity, Inc. to The Northwestern
w7 - . s Mutual Life Insurance Company::incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(aa) on Form 8-K, dated
v aneow o December 6, 2001, filed by-the Registrant on March 21,°2002. (File:No. 1-9997).
. 10(h)(6)(A). Absolute Assignment of Leases and Rents from Koger Equ1ty Inc. to The Northwestern Mutual Life
Insurance Company, dated December 16, 1996, for Duval;.L:eon; Orange and Pinellas Counties,
sway .+ . Florida, Greenville County, South Carolina, -Shelby, County, Tennessee; and Bexar, El:Paso:and
i =oean-Travis. Counties; Texas: Incorporated- by reference to Exhibit: 10(j)(3)(B) on Form 8 K, dated
oy =0« - December 16, 1996, filed by the Registrant:on.March:10; 1997 (File:No.-1-:9997).
+:10(n)(6)(B) - - AbsoluteAssignment of Leases and Rents from Koger.Equity, Inc. to;The Northwestern Mutual Life
~‘Insurance Company, dated September.2, 1999, for Duval, leon,-Orange:and Pinellas Counties,
w2, v Florida,. Greenville County, South Carolina, Shelby-County, Tennessee; and Bexar, El Paso:and
s, .- Travis Counties, Texas: Incorporated by reference to Exhibit-10(j)(1.1) on Form 8-K, dated September
o .2,:1999, filed by the Registrant.on-November 17,1999 (File-No. 1-9997):..
‘ C « +Consolidation and Amendment of Absolute Assignment.of Leases and- Rents dated December 6,
Cemg w2001 between Koger ‘Equity,. Inc: and. The. Northwestern: Mutual Life,Insurance Company, for
e o oo Orange Gounty, Florida: Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(r)-on: Form 8-K, dated December 6,
ST 2001, filed:by the-Registrant-on March 21,.2002: (File No: 1-9997). . '
Consolidation and Amendment of Absolute Assignment ofL:eases and Rents dated December 8,
1. -, 2001, between Koger Equity, Inc:-and-The Northwestern.Mutual Life 4nsurance Company, for
. .Pinellas County, Florida.. Incorporated by referenceto Exhibit 10(s) on- Form 8-K, dated December
-6, 2001, filed by the. Regrstrant on March 21, 2002:(File No. 19997 ),
Consolidation and Amendment of Absolute Assignment-of‘l:eases;and: Rents dated December 6,
St oo 02001, between Koger Equity, Inc-and:The Northwestern MutualLife Insurance Company;for Duval
By v oo Gounty, Floridan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit:40(t)-on Form 8-K, dated December 6, 2001,
st wrn - filed by the Registrant.on March 21, 2002+(File No.1:9997)..  raniioe
10(h)(6)(F) Consolidation and Amendment of Absolute Assignment: of Leases and. Rents dated December 6,
Ssr w2001, between Koger Equity; Inc. and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, for Leon
e - . Gounty; Florida, Incorporated by-reference to. Exhibit 10(u) on Form8-K; dated December 6, 2001,
ey o filed by the Registrant on.March-21,2002. (File No. 1-9997)¢ - -5 o
10(h)(6)(G) Consolidation and Amendment of Absolute Assignment of Leases andRents, dated December 6,
e oo 2001, between Koger:Equity;: Inc. and The:Northwestern Mutual Life . Insurance Company;. for
<=+, Shelby County, Tennessee. Incorporated by reference to"Exhibit. 10(v).on Form 8-K, dated
0w qr o w.December:, 2001, filed by the"Registrant on-March-21,.2002 (File.No. 1-9997).
10(h)(6)(H) Absolute Assignment of Leases and Rents, dated December 6, 2001, between Koger Equity, Inc.
¢owi ¢ nrand The Northwestern Mutual Liferinsurance Company;for Seminole: County; Florida. Incorporated
-+ by reference to Exhibit 10(w ) on Form 8-K, dated December 6, 2001 filed: by the Registrant on
cwo4 . o March.21,2002(File No. 1-9997). - 4 - B
10(h)(6)(1) Absolute Assignment of Leases and Rents, dated December 6 2001 between Koger Equity, Inc.
sy oo and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, for DeKalb County, Georgia. Incorporated
- . by reference to Exhibit 10(x) on.Form 8-K, dated December 6, 2001 flted by the Registrant on
S Mareh 21,2002 (File-No. 1-9997). - :
10(h)(6)(J) Absolute Ass1gnment of Leases and Ftents dated December 6 2001 between Koger Equity, Inc.
Je - - and The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, for Gwinnett County, Georgia. Incorporated
- by reference to Exhibit 10(y) on Form 8-K, dated December 6,2001, flted by the Registrant on
=7« March 21, 2002 (File No. 1-9997). :
10(h)7 - . Side Letter Regarding Land Use Oplnlon dated December6 2001 from Koger Equity, Inc. to The
: Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Gompany. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(z )on Form
- 8-K, dated December 6, 2001, filed by the Registrant.on March 21,:2002 (File No. 1-9997).
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Exhibit
Number ~ Description o s
+=A0[) (1) - The. Reyolvrng Credit Loan: Agreement dated-as of December 28;2001-among Koger Equity, Inc.and

Fleet::National Bank; as-Arranger; and Administrative Agent, and-Wells-Fargo Bank, National
- -Association, as Syndication-Agent;-and: Thé tenders Party.Hereto. - Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(a)(1) on Form 8K, dated December 28 2001, frled by the Reglstrant on February 28 2002
Lo CfFileN0: 4:9997). 0 v e e e e T e e Y e
o Ato(j:)(:-Z)(A) +.The Revolving: Credrt Note: dated January 8 2002 |ssued by Koger Equrty Inc to Fleet Natronal Bank »
e s “in-the-principal:amounit of up-t0:$55,000,000. ' Incorporated'by reference to;Exhibit 10(a)(2)(A) on
Form 8-K, dated December 28, 2001, filed by the Registrant on February 28,2002 (File No. 1-9997).
:,::,.2;110(3)(2-)(18) 1 ThesBevolving: Credit-Note. dated-December-28,:2001 -issued:by. Koger-Equiity, Inc. to:Wells Fargo
Tl . .Bank; Nationat Asseciation;in the: prrncrpal amountof up to $40,000,000: Incorporated by reference
- toExhibit 10(a)(2)(B).on Form 8:K; dated December 28; 2001 frled by the Regrstrant on February 28,
2002 (File No. 1- -9997).
o 10M2)(C) e The:Revolving Credit-Note dated December:28, 2001 issued by Koger Equrty Inc to Compass Bank,
an; Alabama:banking: corporation in the; prrncrpal ‘amount:of:up t0-$20;000,000. Incorporated by
=~ - referenceito Exhibit. 10(a}(2)(C):on Form.8-K; dated December 28, 2001 trled by the Registrant on
LN o February 28,:2002:(File:No: 1-9997).. . .1 w7 ¢
~410()(2){D)+... -+ »The Revolving Credit Note' dated. January 8,:2002: rssued by Koger Equrty Inc to Comerica Bank in
the principal amount of up to $10,000,000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(2)(D) on Form
Tooal . -8:K; dated:December 28,2001, filed by the. Registrant: on. February 28, 2002 (File No:1-9997).
" 10(r)(2) ) ;The Swrnghne Note dated:December:28; 2001: issued by Koger Equity; Inc: to:Fleet National Bank in
ET NP IRt _the principal-amount of up.to $2;500,000. Incorporated: by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(2)(E) on Form 8-
K, dated:December-28, 2001, filed-by the:Registrant:on: February 28,2002 (File No. 1-9997).
< AO[)3)(A) .« The Deed to;Secure:Debt and Security Agreement.dated.as of December 28, 2001 relating to that
portion of the Collateral located in the State' of:Georgia granted by Koger Equity, Inc. to, and in favor
-:~0f, the'Lenders: Incorporated by reference to Exhibit:10(a)(3)(A) on Form 8-K, dated Degember 28,
2001, filed by:the Registrant on February 28, 2002-(File-No. 1-9997). -
;- The:Deed of Trust-and Security Agresment dated:as of December.28, 2001 relatrng to that portion of
- the Collateral located inthe: State of North:Carolina granted by KogerEquity; Inc. to, andiin favor of,
.+ thedwenders. Incorporated by reterence to Exhibit:10(a)(3)(B).on Form 8-K; dated December28 2001,
filed by the Registrant on-February: 28,2002 {File:No..1-9997). s
“The Mortgage and Security. Agreement dated-as; of: December 28, 2001 relatrng to that portion of the
= -Gollateral located in the State:of Florida granted by: Koger-Equity,.In¢:to, and:in favor of, the Lenders.
* + Incorporated by reference to-Exhibit: 10(a)(3)(C).on Form 8 K, dated December 28, 2001 fsted by the
n Reglstrant on:Eebruary 28,2002 (File No,:1-9997). .- TN PRI
#izl 0(i),(4)(A) - The-Assignment of Leases and:Rents dated as of December 28, 2001 relatrng to that portron ot the
T Collateral located:in the State:of Georgia granted:by Koger:Equity; Inc. to, and in favor of, the
wv v o colenders. incorporated by.reference:to Exhibit:d 0(a)(4)(A) on Form 8-K, dated December 28, 2001,
-~ filed by the Registrant on.February 28;:2002. (File:No: 1-9997). . el
: 10(r)( )(B ) ~.The Assignment of Leases and.Rents dated as of December 28; 2001r retatrng to that portion of the
SRR ~ Collateral located in the State of North-Carolina granted by Koger Equity, Inc;to, and in favor of, the
~kenders. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit-1Q(a)(4)(B) on Form 8-K, dated December 28, 2001,
Ve own frled by the:Registrant on:February 28,-2002 (File‘No. 1-9997)..... .= ..
s 10()(4)(C) - . TheAssignment of Leases and Rents:dated.as of December 28, 2001 relatrng to that portion of the
Collateral located in the State of Florida granted by Koger Equity, Inc: to; -and in favor of, the Lenders.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(4)(C) on Form 8-K, dated December 28, 2001, filed by the
Registrant on February 28, 2002 (File No. 1-9997).
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_ Number  Description

c5100)(B)(A) 7 The Indemnity Agreement Regarding Hazardous Materials,.dated as.of December 28, 2001, relating
SRR LS i to-—th'a‘t'portion of the Collateral lo¢ated'in the State:of Georgia. - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
- 10(a)(5)(A)en Form 8-K; dated Iecember 28 2001 ttted by the Ftegrstrant on February 28, 2002
w2 (File:No. 1-9997).% SR
The Indemnity Agreement Ftegardmg Hazardous Matenals dated as ot December 28, 2001, reIatlng
“'to'that portion“of the Collateral located in.the State-of North'Carolina. :Incorporated by.reférence to
" Exhibit10(a)(5)(B) on Form 8- K dated December28 2001 flled by the Reglstrant on February 28,
it 2002:(File No: 1:9997): ok SET D
‘The IndemnrtyrAgreement Regardmg Hazardous Materlals dated as of Iecember 28, 2001y relating
i to'that portion of-the Collateral located:in the:State of Florida: Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
£ 1’0’( )(5)(C) on‘Formi 8:K, dated-December 28, 2001, fr!ed by the Regrstrant on February 28, 2002
(File No. 1-9997). A
.First Amendment to‘Revolving Credit Loan'Agreement. Among Koger Equrty Inc. and Fleet National
: £ . - Bank, -as-Arranger -and- Administrative ‘Agent,-and Wells. Fargo. Bank;: National Association, as
“LowEs oy ‘Syndication: T Agent; - and. -Commerzbank “AG, New - York: and-'Grand - Cayman Branches, as
Documentation Agent, and The Lenders: Party Hereto, dated'as:of April-5, 2002, Incorporated by
SRR S ' referenceto. Exhtbrt 10 on: Form 8 K; dated Aprll 5, 2002 frled by the Reglstrant on Juné 6{2002 (File
S FiNor 149997y i Bl :
~ Second: Amendment le} Revolvmg Credrt Loan Agreement Amongr Koger Equity, Inc. and Fleet
¢+ Natiorial Bank, as:Arranger and Administrative. Agent; and WellsFargo:Bank, National Association, as
=+ Syndication: ‘Agent,:‘and Commerzbank -AG; New York: and”Grand : Cayman Branches, as
- =" Documentation-Agent; and Thé L.enders:Party Hereto, dated as of June:10, 2002.
BT e ' "lncorporated"‘b'y reference to-Exhibit ‘10( )on Form 8 K dated June 10 2002 filed by the Registrant
LEECTS RO -on June 21,2002 (File No.-1-9997). -
SO ) Deed to' Secure:Debt-and: Sécurity Agreement dated as of June 10 2002 between Koger Ravinia,
LLC and Fleet National B4rik, a hational banking association: ' Incorporated.by reference to Exhibit
SRR “10(b)-on. Form.8:K,:dated June 10, 2002, filed by the Registrant:on' Juné’21, 2002 (File No. 1-9997).
AOETC): - Guaranty; datedas of June 10;2002, by Koger Ravinia, LLC of debt:of Koger Equity, Inc. in favor of
s sE Fleet National Bank, é-national banking-association; and others. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
. 10(c) on Form 8-K;:dated'June"10;:2002,; filed by the Registrant'on'Junei2¥;2002 (File No. 1-9997).
CE10(IN(7)(D)- - -Assigniment of Leasesand Rerits; dated-as of2June 10,.2002; by Koger Ravinia, LLC to FléétNational
@onvezd v Bank, anational banking-assotiation, and-othérs. Incorporated by referenceto Exhibit 10(d) on Form
0 8K dated June 1072002, filed by:the Registrant on'dune 21,:2002¢(File‘No. 1-9997).
Indemnity Agreement Regarding Hazardous'Materials, dated as of June:10, 2002, by Koger Equity,
s oh e u Ineiand *Koger Raviria; LLC for the. benefit of: Lenders under a certain® Revolving -Credit: Loan
woE “ Agreement, dated December 28; 2001, and as:amended April’5; 2002, and June 10, 2002, and as
< may-be-furthet ariiended from'time tortime: ‘Incorporated by refererice to Exhibit 10(e) on Form 8-K,
dated June 10, 2002, filed by the Registrant on June-21, 2002 (File No. 1-9997).
<. 10(i)(8)(A) ~~  + “Third Amendment to Revolving Credit Loan Agreement Among-Koger Equity, Inc. and Fleet National
L hau a0t oiBank, ‘ase Arranger and Administrative ‘Agent,-and Wells Fargo Bank; National Association, as
... Syndication Agent, Compass Bank; Commerzbank AG, New York and Grand Cayman Branches, as
Documentation ‘Agent, and Comerica. Bank, dated as of Decembeét 16, 2002 (the "Agreement’).
~Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) on:Form 8-K, dated December 16, 2002, filed- by the
Regrstrant on January 29 2003 (Frle No 1- 9997) ' ' :
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Number Description

10(i)(8)(B) Revolving Credit Note, dated December 16, 2002 in the principal amount of up to $50,000,000
, _ executed and delivered in connection with the Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b)
““on Form 8K, dated December 16, 2002, filed by the Registrant on January 29, 2003 (File No. .1-

9997).
10(i)}(8)(C) Revolving Credit Note, dated December 16, 2002 in the principal amount of up to $50,000,000.
‘ executed and delivered in connection with the Agreement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(c)

on Form 8-K, dated December 1 6, 2002, frled by the Reglstrant on January 29, 2003 (File No. 1-

L 19997).

100) Management Agreement dated June 16, 2000, between Koger Equity, Inc. and Crocker Realty Trust,
L.P., a Delaware limited partnership. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(j) of Form 10-K filed by

‘the Registrant for the period ended December 31, 2000 (Flle No. 1-9997).

10(k) Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among Koger Equity, Inc., as Seller, and AREIF | Realty Trust,
Inc., a Maryland corporation, as Buyer, dated as of August 23, 2001 Incorporated by reference to
Exhrbrt 10 on Form 8-K, dated August 23, 2001, frted by the Registrant on August 27, 2001 (Frle No.
1-9997).

10(1)(1) Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnershrp of Koger-Vanguard Partners, L.P., dated
as of October 22, 1998, between Koger Equity, Inc. as General Pariner and certain persons as
Limited Partners of Koger-Vanguard Partners, L.P. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 12 on Form
8-K, dated October 22, 1998, filed by the Registrant on December 31, 1998 (File No. 1-9997).

10(1(2) Agreement Regarding Purchase and Transfer of Partnership Interest dated as of January 4, 2002
between Koger Equity, Inc. and 77 Center Investors Limited Partnership and 77 Center Investors ||
Limited Partnership. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) on Form 8-K, dated January 4, 2002,
filed by the Registrant on March 15, 2002 (File No. 1-9997).

10(1)(3) Assrgnment and Transfer of Partnership, dated as of January 7, 2002 between 77 Center Investors

' Limited Partnership and 77 Center Investors I Limited Partnership and Koger Equity, Inc. and Koger
Realty Services, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) on Form 8-K, dated January 4, 2002,
filed by the Registrant on March 15, 2002 (File No. 1-3997).

10(m){1) Deed to Secure Debt, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dating as of December 17, 2002 by
Koger Ravinia, LLC, as Grantor, to Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, as Grantee. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10(a) on Form 8-K, dated December 17, 2002, filed by the Registrant on
January 16, 2003 (File No. 1-9997).

10(m)(2) Promissory Note dated December 17, 2002 between Koger Ravinia, LLC, and Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company, in the principal amount of $85,000,000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10{b) on Form 8-K, dated December 17, 2002, filed by the Registrant on January 16, 2003 (File No.
1-9997).

10(m)(3) Unsecured Indemnity Agreement dated December 17, 2002 between Koger Ravinia, LLC, and
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(c) on Form 8-K, dated
December 17, 2002, filed by the Registrant on January 16, 2003 (File No. 1-9997).

10(m)(4) Assignment of Leases dated December 17, 2002 relating to that portion of the Collateral, granted by
Koger Ravinia, LLC, to, and in favor of, the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(d) on Form 8-K, dated December 17, 2002, filed by the Registrant on January
16, 2003 (File No. 1-9997).

10(m)(5) Guaranty Agreement dated December 17, 2002, by Koger Equity, Inc. for benefit of Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(e) on Form 8-K, dated December 17,
2002, filed by the Registrant on January 16, 2003 (File No. 1-9997).

10(m)(6) Affidavit of Ownership and Certification of Borrower of Koger Ravinia, LLC, dated December 17,
2002. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(f) on Form 8-K, dated December 17, 2002, filed by the
Registrant on January 16, 2003 (File No. 1-9997).
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Number Description

10(m)(7) , Subordination of Management/Lease Agreement to Deed dated December 17, 2002 by Koger

' ‘ Equity, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) on Form 8- K dated December 17, 2002, filed
by the Registrant on January 16, 2003 (File No. 1-9997).

10(m})(8) Letter Agreement Regarding Impositions dated December 17, 2002, of Metropolitan Life Insurance

Company Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(h) on Form 8-K, dated December 17,2002, filed
by the Registrant on January 16, 2003 (File No. 1-9997)."

| 10(m)(9) Letter Agreement Regarding Premiums dated December 17, 2002, of Metropohtan Life Insurance

Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(i) on Form 8- K dated December 17,2002, flled by
the Registrant on January 16, 2003 (File No. 1-9997).

‘ 10(m)('10) ~~ Assignment and Secunty Agreement dated December 17, 2002, between Koger Ravinia, LLC, and
o Metropolitan Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(j) on Form 8-K, dated
December 17, 2002, filed by the Registrant on January 16, 2003 (Fne No 1-9997).

11~ . Eamings Per Share Computations.”
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*
23 independent Auditors’ Consent.” :
99 ' Certificate of Principal Executlve Offrcer and Pnnmpal Fmancral Offlcer

*Filed with this Report.
item 16. PRINCIPAL"ACCOUNTANf‘FEES A'N'b SERVICES

Information regarding services provided by and fees billed by the Company s principal accountants Deloitte & Touche

LLP is incorporated by reference to the section headed "Independent Certified Public Accountants“ of the 2003 Proxy
Statement.”
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. SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13:6r"15(d) of the Securmes Exchange Actof 1934, the Registrant, Koger Equity, Inc., has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersignéd, thereunto duly authorized.

KOGER EQUITY;INC. . - T STt SN2 CO S P ORI S PR
By: ,.o[fs/VictorA. Hughes, Jr. -~ o e e e
.. Victor A Hughes,.Jr. .- . T S S T .
'. ... Chairman of the Board o B i
Date ) March 28 2003

on behalf of the Reglstrant in the capacmes and on the dates indicated.
> .Signature; -~ oo - - cre e o we o Tt me s o 43 Date o oot
/s/ VlctorA Hughes Jr ; .+ <. ¢ - ChairmanoftheBoard. .. - ~March28,2003 .
(VICTOR A. HUGHES, JR)) '

" j/ Thomas J. Crocker " - ¥ hief Exécutive ' March 28,2003~
<O (THOMASU:CROCKERY -~ 7 & T andDifgigtor <77 7 1 ST BT B
(Pnnmpal Executzve Offncer)

siStevenA Abney Ve Presudent Finance March 28,2003 -, -

Freid

(STEVEN A. ABNEY) (Principal Financial and Accountmg Offucer)

D PkeABian T Y pideter T T March 28,2008
. PIKE ALOIAN) S S

o vifsiBenjaminC.Bishop - - .~ .. o co.o, o oDireetors s oo o March 28; 2003
+ (BENJAMIN,C.BISHOP)..- . - g Y ATt I

s/ David B. Hiley T Thiteator T Mareh 28, 3003
"~ (DAVID B. HILEY)

/s/ George F. Staudter “: Director £ 8 March 28,2003
(GEORGE F STAUDTER)

. March 28, 2003

/s/JamesC Teaﬂg
(JAMES C. TEAGLE)
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* - ++.:+ PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER.
..-AND: PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL.OFFICER.

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies in his capacity as an officer of Koger Equity, Inc. (the "Company*) that he:has
reviewed this annual report and, to the best of his knowledge and belief, the annual report of the'Cempany ori:Férm 10-K for
the annual period ended December 31, 2002 fully complies with the requirements of Section*13(a) 6f the Sécurities
Exchange Act of 1934, that the annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a matériat fact or om tb‘ state a
material fact necessary in order to make the report not misleading, and that the information contained in'sich report falrly
presents,. in all material respects, the.financial condition .of . the,Company at,the end .of such. penod and the_results of
operations and cash flows of the Company for such penod R B . mn Lo an :

Additionally, each of the undersigned are reepon3|ble for establishing and maintaining disclosire: controls and
procedures {as défifiéd in Exchange Adt Rilles' 13a-14"and 15d-14) for the. Company and

of the Company s board of directors: o s

“4) dll:significant deficiencies in the:design or operation of internal controls which.could-adversely affect the
Company's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data:and have ‘identified for the

. ,‘Companyfs auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls

2) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
- -role,in-thexCompany's internal centrols; and - o :

~ 3) any significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could 5|gn|f|cant|y affect mternal
“conitrols, s(ibsequent to the date of Hi§'most recent evaluation, including- any cerrectlve achons with-regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

4) his conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on his evaluation
described in b) above.

Dated: March 28, 2003 : /s/ Thomas J. Crocker
Thomas J. Crocker
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
Koger Equity, Inc.

Dated: March 28, 2003 /s/ Steven A. Abney
Steven A. Abney
Vice President, Finance (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Koger Equity, Inc.
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Board ofD1rectors -
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‘ Benjamm C\Blshop, Jr‘ N
»» Thomas J. Crocker-. C
‘David B. Hiley
‘_ Victor A. Hughes; Jr. + .1~
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A Semor Ofﬁcers

« ‘Thomas J. Crocker, Chlef Executive Oﬁ" seer

.~ Robert E Onisko, Chief Fi manczal Officer
" . Christopher L. Becker, Senior Vice President
Thomas C. Brockwell; Senzor Vice President
- Steven A, Abney, Vzce Preszdent Fmance
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- Counsel
- Ropes & Gray
" Boston, Massachusetts

~

: Boling & McCart
Jaeksonville Florida' .
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kWhlte&CaseLLP R B

. Miami, Flonda
Independent Certified -

Public Accountants St
JDelmtte & Touche LLP
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_Stock Llstmg -
New York Stock Exchange .
_Common Stock Symbol: KE
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| Internet address: www:koger.com
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Common Stock Transfer Agent

D1v1dend Paying ‘Agent and Reg1strar
" Wells Fargo Bank anesota, N. A. 5
- “Wells Fargo Shareowner Serv1ces

. Post Office Box 64854 - _
~ St. Paul, anesota 55164 0854l T o
. (800) 468-9716 or R , ~ b
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D1v1dend Remvestment Plan : e

oy <
' Stockholders may elect to’ have d1v1dends
automatlcally remvested in additional shares
of Koger Equity, Inc. common'stock. For -~
mformatlon about dividend* reinvestment, )
contact Wells Fargo Bank at (800) 468-9716.

P . R

— R - ' - <

Automatlc D1v1dend Depos1t
Stockholders may elect to have dividends ' -
hutomancally deposited into the~ﬁnan01al

. institution of: their choice. For information o

about automatic dividend depos1t contact
Wens Fargo Bank at (800) 4689716,

. Koger. Equ’it’y,_‘lnc;

. Corporate Office ' . T ) . B

225 NE Mizner Blvd., Sulte 200 . -
“Boca Raton; Florida 33432 S AP
(561) 395-9666 Lo - o “ e o




